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INDEPENDENT AUMTOR'S REPORT

The Board of Directors and the Stockholders
Bonpgko Kabayvan, lnec,

(A Private Development Bank)

Santiago Sireet

Poblacion, [baan, Batangas

Beport on the Audit of the Financial Statements
{hpinion

We have audited the financial statements of Bangko Kabayan, Inc. (the Bank), which comprise the
statemenl of financial position as al December 51, 2021, and the sislement of income, staiement of
comprehensive income, staterment of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In aur apinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Bank as at December 31, 2021, and its financial performance and its cash Nows for the
year then ended in sccordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards {(PFRS).

Basis for Opinlon

We conducted our audit in sccordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs), Our
responsibilitics under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Sttements section of our report. We ane independent of the Bank in accordance with the
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines {the Code of Ethics) together with the
cthical requirements that are relevant to our aedit of the lnancial statements in the Philippines, and we
have fulfilled cur other ethical responsibilitics in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriote to provide a
basis for our opinicen.

(ther Matter

The financinl statements of the Bank as at December 31, 2020 and for the year then ended were audited
by another auditor whose report dated Februory 17, 2021 expressed an ungualified opinion on those
financial statements.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governaner for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fuir presentation of the linancial statements in

accordance with PFRSz, and for such internal control 0s management determines is nocessary 1o enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from motenal misstatement, whether due to frand or
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for aweessing the Banks ability 1o
contimwe as 4 going conoem, disclosing, ws applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
goang concem basis of accounting unless managemeant sither intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease
operalions, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responssble for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting proocss.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Awdit of the Financial Statements

Our ebjectives are to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whoele are
free from material misstotement, whether due 1o fraud or error, and to issuc an auditor’s report teat
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is o high bevel of sssurance, but is not o gusraniee that an
audil condwcted in accordance with PEAs will always defect a material misstaternent when il exisis,
Misstatements can arize from fravd or error and are considered material of, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basiz of these financial statements,

A part of an audit in accordaree with PEAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughoa the audit, We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, wheiher due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsivee to those nisks, and obtaim sudit evidence that
15 sufTicient and appropriate (o provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting n material
musstatement resulting from fravd is higher tham for one resulfing from error, as fraod may invelve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal contral.

# Obtain an understanding of intermal comrol relevant 1o the swdit in order to design audit procedunes
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of cxpressing an opinion on the
elfectivencss of the Bank's intermal control,

¢ Evaluate the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonablencss of accounting
cstimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of managemem”s use of the going concern basis of aceounting ansd,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exisis related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt en the Bank's ability to continue as a going concem. 1F we
conclude that & matersal |,.|r'||,.'h'.:r1:|i:|1:.' exisks, we arg reguired 1o draw attention in our powtor's report o
the related disclosures in the financial stinements or, i such disclosures are inadequote, to modily our
opuiion. Char conclustons are based on the auds evidence obained up o the doie of our auditor’s
report, Howewver, future events of conditions may cause the Bank 10 cease 1o conlinue &5 .8 going
CONCEH.

+  Evaloate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial staterments, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represgnt the underlying transactions and evenls ina
manner that pehieves fuir presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSF)
Circalar No. 1074 and Revenue Regulations 15-2010

Chur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial stalements taken as
a whole. The supplementary information required under BSP Circular No. 1074 in Note 23 to the
financial statements and Revenue Regulations 15-2010 in Note 24 to the financial statements is presented
for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and the BSP, respectively, and is not a requined
part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsbility of the management of
Bangko Kabayan, Inc. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit
of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all matenial respects,
in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

I'he Stockholders and the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors and the Stockholders
Bangko Kabayan, Inc.

(A Private Development Bank)

Santiago Strect

Poblacion, Ibhaan, Batangas

We have audited the financial statements of Bangko Kabavan, Inc. (the Bank) as at December 31, 2021
and for the vear then ended on which we have rendered the attached report dated April 20, 2022,

In comphiance with Secunties Regulabion Code Rule 88, we are siating that the Bank has 156
stockholders owning one hundred (100) or more shares cach of the Bank's capital stock
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BANGKO KABAYAN, INC.
(A PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT BANK)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2021

{With Comparative Figures as of December 31, 2020)

fAmennis in Fhrilippiee Pesos)

December 31
2021 2020

RESOURCES
CASH AND OTHER CASH ITEMS (Note 7) 57,505,770 PGS, 207,526
DUE FROM BANGHED SENTRAL NG PILIPINAS (Moe 7) 223,609, LHG 374,140,674
DUE FROM OTHER BANKS (Mot 8) 238,549,811 440,746,547
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR YVALUE THRUOUGH

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Mow %) 145,555,046 LR1L2LT.647
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTIZED COST (Mote ) ATE 30 ATH 235,911,870
LOANS ANDOTHER RECEIVABLES (Mo 10} 2060521960 0,53 G000 T

BANK PREMISES, FURNITURES, FIXNTURES

AND EQUIPMENT (Mote 1) 132665815 128809532
IMYESTMENTS PROPERTIES (Mo 12) GG, 701 BHE Ti412.25)
OTHER RESCLURCES (Mobe 11) 30341, T45 S 182, 1540
TOTAL RESOURCES FAITOI0E 0402 B3 AR 158604 |

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
DEFOSIT LIABILITIES (Moge 15)

FLTTT,004, 140

FL 741067, 799

OTHER LIABILITIES i Mote 16) B2, 27T.515 117£%5.056
Toal Liahilitics 1 K59,15] 655 2 RER. L2835
CAPITAL STOCK (Mo [T) 36T, 730,200 167,739,200
SURPLUS RESERVES (Mo 17} 171701 30 14,299 614
SURPLUS FREE {™ote 17) 1, 034, 62 TEREGTE, 04
REVALUATION RESERVES {20042, k450 |_2I-3‘.-f-.'.‘52|
Toanl Equity S1P51,347 29,695, B
TOTAL LIABILITES AND EEII.I IT% PLATOI0E NI P3.455£FE.|4|
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BANGKO KABAYAN, INC.

(A PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT BANK)
STATEMENT OF INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
{With Comparative Figures for the Year Ended 2020)
{Amwrers te Plrilippine Fevo)

Years Ended December 31

202l 2020

INTEREST INCOME
Loans and reccivables (Moie 10) BI73,790 540 B2RS. 937 327
Investiment secunies ( Nole ¥ 19, THI. 524 16, THS, 11K
Duae from BSP and other banks {Motes 7 amd 3) 201,251 13,651,962
ML TT5. 115 316,374 180

INTEREST EXFENSE
Deposil Liabalitses (Mobe 15) 10471, 306 13,9535, MK
Lﬁl:ﬂi - Mg I, 508, 502 | RST.214
13,359 568 15,810,916

MET INTEREST INCOME

FROVISION FOR {(REVERSAL OF) CREDIT AND IMPAIRMENT

TR A5, 247

300, 563 473

LAYSSES (Mobes 4 and 125 (2438830 433448976
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION FOR

CEREDIT AND INMPAIRMENT LOSSES 201 854,086 257218407
OTHER INCOME Mot 15) 117085 . 35.269.830 .
TOTAL INCOME 322971971 2458 528

OFERATING EXPENSES (Mot [8)

(247 938,006

(294, | =i, 205 )

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX TR, 055 R, 324 (k)
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Mo 20) LIS 081 L ASYT]
NET INCOME P54, 080,574 Pl 7 R K3

§ee acoowmpanileg Netes fo Flaancin’ Sutemends
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BANGKO KABAYAN, INC.

(A FRIVATE DEVELOPMENT BANK)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
{With Comparative Figures for the Year Ended 2020)
(A merins i Philippine Pesirs)

Years Ended December 31

2031 2030
NET FROFIT F54.050.874 P 7, 864,051
OTHER COMPREHESSIVE INCOME {L0355)
Tecan that will mot be reclassified subscguently to profit or loss
Gaain (loss) on remessurement of post-employment defimed
benefit obligation {Mote 14) 11422073 {19.591.971)
Income lax besefll (expense) {4.734.00 2§ 5.877.59]
5, 68K, 06 1 (13.714.380)
Itern that will be reclossificd subseqoenily 1o profit or loss
Fair valuee gains { losses) on Onancial assets st fair valve thaough
ather comprehensive income (BMote ) (5,602, GAHH £.240,.561
Income tax benelit (expansg) 249,204 {235,259
(5,413, 3000 8,005, 3102
Other Comprebensive [ncome ( Loss) 1,274,667 {5, 709, 07R)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE |."'-[ﬂ"i§ FOR THE YEAR #H-._ZFS,F-I-I P42 155 005
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BANGRO KABAYAN, INC,
{A FRIVATE DEVELOFMENT BANK)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR EXNDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
(W ith Comparative Figores for the Year Ended 20200
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BANGKO KABAYAN, INC.
(A PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT BANK)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
(With Comparative Figures for the Year Ended X020}
fAmrnnts in Firiippioe Pesos)

Years Embed Decembser 31

2021 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before fax FT5033.952 PiH, 524,060
Adpusimenis for;
Depreciation amd amomization (Noe 18) 21,781,202 X2 975,532
Cinin on sle of nen-finencial assets {Note 15) (10,217.451) {315,260 980
Prawisian for {reversal of) credin and empainnent losses
(mWote 10and 12) (2438810 43,541,256
Premium (discount) amortizalion on
finncial asscts o1 amonboed cosa T3 {End ET0)
Uinrealszed forgign curmency (gnins) losses {].JH'."} 3104%
(perating profit before chanpges in operuting esseis and liahilities BS, 126,770 9T.920,004

Changes in operating assets and liaklities
Drecreases {increases) im
Loans and other neceivables

(204,972, 144}

1 609 573

(rber resources 14,772,689 {23 536.038)
Increnses (decrenses) in;

Drepasat liabilites 36,006,341 | B6831072

Chiher Liabilities (18384, 508} 3308 (60
Cash generated from (uwsed in) operations {222 450, R52) 265,474, B
Income tuxes paid {7546, 921) { 30, 7 500N )
Met cash provided by (used in) operating activities {219,997, T75) 234,713 806
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acguigilion of financial asseis o1 amortined cast {200,450, 000} {1 7000, 000)
Proceeds from maturities of financial asseis ai amon ieed cost 120, 00, 000 S0, Co{0, DRy
Proceeds from disposal of investment propenses 17,405,040 76,363,722
Acquisition of bank premises, fumiture, Axwres and equipment (15,749, 0104) 12,369,453
Acquisition of compuiter software [L0US,610) (4, 200)
Proceeds fronm sale of bank premises. (miiore, (Ioiures and eguipment 1,202,898 271K, 153
Med cash used in investing activitics (1,912 482 650) 153,383 B18)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Paymeent of dividends (Mose 14) (173, 506,481)
Payment af bexse labdbiny {Mowe |4) {6, TAE H65) (7,053, 270)
Cosh used in financing activities [ R0, 6 201, 144) (7,053,270)
Elfects of changes in forcipn exchange rake AT [EXENY
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH I.'HL IVALENTS (465,302,201} 174275675

| Fiarward)
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Years Ended Decemnber 31

221 2
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF THE YEAR
Cash and other cash equivalents 6HE 207,816 GE 651 536
Due from Bangko Sentml ng Filipinas 3T 140,674 AT5. H99 457
Duse From atber banks 171,746,597 IR6, 284325
Secuniies under overmight repurchase agreement 127,332, 14 & 315 THE
041,427,281 T6T 151,606
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT EXNDOF THE YEAR
Cash and other cash equivalenis FST.505,T M P, 20T, A
Due from Banpko Seniral ng Pilipinas 223,669, £89 374,140,674
[Dhee from oibher banks 194,949 511 AT TG, 38T
Securilies under svernight repurchase agreement = 127,352 184
P4T6, 125,070 P1427. 281
— E—
DPFERBATIONAL CASH FLIAWS FROM INTEREST
Interest received F114,174.332 297 459 911
Interess paid 'I-I-.TI'II.;"‘TEJ 17,993, Gl
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BANGKO KABAYAN INC.
{A PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT BANK)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Matters

fncorparanon and Ceeratioey

Bangko Kobayan Inc. (A Private Development Bank), formerly known as Bangko Kabayan

(A Bural Bank) Inc, (the Bank), was incorporated in the Philippines on August 2, 2007 10 engage in
the business of rural banking. [t was organized to carry the merger between Bangko Kabayan (Ibaan
Ruml Bank., Inc.) and Banco de Jesus Bural Bank, Ine, The Monetary Board of the Bangko Seniral
ng Pilipinas {BSP) issued the Bank’s sutherity 1o operaie as @ thrilt bank on May 27, 2016, On
April 25, 2016, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) approved the Bank’s application to
operate as a thrift bank.

On February 6, 2019, City Savings Bank, Inc. (CSB) and UBP Investments Corporation (L1C) signed
a share purchase agreement (SPA) with the Bank's shareholders for the purchase of 2,574, | T8
common shares representing 70% ownership the Bank. On September 19, 2009, the BSP approved
the transfer of shares equivalent 1o 49% and 21% of the Bank"s outstanding common shares to C5B
amd LITC, respectively.

CSB and UIC ane 99, 79% and F00.00%, respectively, owned subsidiaries of Union Bank of the
Philippines (UnionBank or the Ulimate Parent Company). Unionbank is a publicly-listed universal
bank incorporated and domiciled in the Philippines providing expanded commercial banking products
and services such as loans and deposits, cash management, retail banking, foreign exchange, capital
markets, corporate and consemer finance, investment managenent and trust banking. The registered
office of C5B, which & also their principal place of business, is located at City Sovings Financinl
Plaza, cormer Osmedia Blvd. & P. Burgos St., Cebu City. The Ultimate Parent Company and UIC™s
regristered address, which is also the principal place of business, is located at UnionBank Flaza,
Meralea Avenue cormer Onys Street and Sapphire Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City.

The Bank was authorized (o engage in the business of extending financial services to farmers,
employees, entreprencurs, commercial, manufacturing and industrial enterprises and 10 such other
persons or entitics that require financial intermediation, and to have and 1o exercise all authority and
powers, and to do and perform all aciz, and 1o transact all business which may legally be done by
Thrift Banks organized under and in accordance with the existing New Thrilt Banks Act of 1995
(Republic Act Mo, TI06).

As of December 31, 2021, the Bank has 23 branches, including the head office, in the arcas of
Batangas, Laguna and Qruezon (Southern Luzon), and one branch-lite in Lobo, Batangas, The Bank™s
registered address, which is also its principal place of business, is o1 Santiago Street, Poblacion,
[bann, Batangas,

I ; il Bum L

On December 21, 2021 and December 22, 2021, the Board of Directors and stockholders of the Bank
approved the plan of merger between the Bank, Firgt Agro Industrial Rural Bank, (FAIR Bank) and
Progressive Bank, Inc. (PBI), with the Bank as the surviving entity.

o Fimaneial Statements
The accompanying financial statements of the Bank were authornized and approvied for issue by the
Bank's Board of Directors (BOD) on April 20, 2022,
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Summary of Skgnificant Accounting Policies
The significant sccounting policies that have been used in the prepamtion of these financial
siatemenis are summarieed as follows, Those ]:b:r“l.'iq:\ hawe been uﬂlls.i.‘i‘lu'rlﬂ}' :J]!lp| ied to all the Yoars

presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Preparation of Financial Stotements

The financial statements have been prepared in aceordance with with Phalippeme Financiel Feportang
Standards (PFRS). PFRS inchstes all applicable PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) and
mterpretations s approved by the Finoncial Reponing  Standards Council (FRSC) and adopied by the
REC.

Presentation o [i]1] 11 nts

The Bank presents its statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity. An analysis
regarding recovery or settllement within 12 months after the statement of reporting date (current) and
maore than 12 months after the stastement of reparting date {non-current) is presented in the respective
noles o Nnancial statement for each asseis and liabilitics. The Bank presents the stafemsent of
comprehensive imcome separate from the statement of income,

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a lustoncal cost basis, except for
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT) that have been measured
al fir value. These financial statermceis are presented in Philippine pesos, the Bank's functional and
presentation currency, and all values represent absolute amounts excepl when otherwise indicated

lems included in the financial statements of the Bank are measured using its Tunctional currency,
Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic envirenment in which the Bank
operales

Chanpes i Accounting Polickes and Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted by the Bank are consistent with those of the previeus financial year,
except for the following amended PFRS which the Bank applicd for the first ume, which is eflective
for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021, The adoption of this amendment did not
have any significant impact on the financial statemiends, except 05 otherwise stated.

Effeciive begluning on or affer January 1, 202
+ Amendments to PFRS %, PFRS 7, PFRS 4 and PFRS 16, Interet Rate Benchmars Reform -
Phase 2

The amendments provide the following temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting

effects when an imerbank offercd rate (IBOR) is replaced with an aliernative nearly nisk-free

interest rate (RFR):

e Practical expedient for changes in the basis for determining the comractual cash flows as
result of TBOR reform

o Relief from discontinuing hedging relationships

o Reliefl from the separaiely identifiahle requirement when an RFR instrument is designated as
a hedge of a nsk component

The Bank shall also disclose information about:

o The about the natre and extent of risks to which the emtity is exposed arising from financial
instruments subject to IBOR reform, and how the entity manages those risks; and




=, o

o Their progress in completing the ransition to allernative benchmark rates, and how the entity
is managing that transition

The amendments are effective for annual reponing periods beginning on or after | January 2021 and
apply retrospectively, however, the Bank is not required to restate prior peniods. The amendments did
ncd hnve significant impact 1o the fmancial stotements of the Bank.

Future changes in qocounting policies

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2022

Pronouncements issued but not yel effective are listed below, Unless otherwise indicated, the Bank
does nod expect that the fubure adoption of the said pronouncements will have a significant impact on
its Financial ststements, The Bank intends 10 adopt the following pronouncements when they become
cifective,

Effeciive hegtaning o or affer Jaruary 1, 2022
& Covid=19:=-Related Rent Concessions !‘u,r:,.'unl,! 30 June 2021 = Amendment o IFRS 16
= Amendments to PFRS 3, Updating a Reference fo the Conceptial Framework
«  Amendments to PAS 16, Properry, Planr and Egueipment: Proceeds before Tntended Use
= Amendments to PAS 37, Ouerons Contracts = Cost af Filfiling a Contract
*  Apnoal Improvements to PFRS Standards 20182020
o PFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Internntional Financial Reporting Standards - Subsiciary a5 o
[irzi-rime adower
o PFRS % Financial [nstraments — Fees o pre "0 per cond © fear for derecognition of finaecial
liahifisies
o PAS 41 Agriculture — Teacartion i fole valine measaremenss

Effective Elegr'.rr.lrl'n_l.; ent far affer Jairieary 1, N123

e |FRS 17, swrance Controcis

o Amendmenis to PAS |, Clasificarion of Liohifier as Currend or Non-currend

o Amendmenis io PAS B, Definition of Aocounitag Exiimares

s Amendments o PAS | and IFRS Practice Statement 2, Discloswre of Aocesmnting Policies

o Amendments to PAS 12, Deferred Tax related fo Asses and Liohilitles arising frowee a Single
Transaction

Deferved effectivity
s  Amendmenis 1o IFES 10 and 1AS 28, Sale or Comiribiniion of Asseis befween an fnvesior and i
Associare ov foind Fenture

Significant Accounting Policies

sh and Cash Eguivalen
For purposes of cash flows reporting and presentation, cash and cash equivalents comprise of
nccounts with original maturities of three months or less from placement date, mcluding cash and
other cash items and non=restricted balances of Due from BSP, Due from Cvher Banks, and Securities
under reverse repurchase agreement (SPFURRA) (presented as pant of Loans and Other Receivables
account). These generally include cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly Hguid
investments readily convertible 1o known amounts of cash and which are subject 10 insignificant sk
of changes in value. Due from BSP includes the statwtory reserves required by the BSP which the
Bank considers ns cash equivalents wherein withdrawals can be made to meet the Bank's cash
requirements as allowed by the BSP.



Dirte of recognition

Purchases or sales of financinl assets that requine delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place are recogmized on the settlement date. Deposils,
amounis due to banks and customers, and loans and receivables are recognized wien cash is received
by the Bank or advamecd to the borrowers,

itial recognition of financial instrumeent
All fimancial instruments are initially recognized ot fair value plus trensaction costs that are directly
attributable 1o the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or Anancial lability except for Mnancial
assels and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL). The Bank classifics ils
finamcial asseds in the I"u|||.|1.-.-i'||l;_ l,:illi,!k'_l.rril.’.\: financial assets al amortized cost, financial assets al
FYTPL and financial assets classified under FVOC], Financial liabilities are categonzed as financeal
liabilitics a1 FVTPL and linancial labilities carmed at amortized cost. The ¢lassification and
measurement of financial instruments i driven by the Bank”s business model for managing the
financial instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial instruments.

Financial Asseis

Financial sssets are recognized when the Bank becomes a party 1o the contrsctunl terms of the
finamcial instrument. For purposes of classifying linancial assels, an instrument is considered as an
exquity instrument i it s non-denvative and meets the definition of equity for the ssuer in accordance
wilh the coteria of PAS 32, Finoncial Instrismenis; Preseniation,

Al other non-denvative fmancial instrumients are treated as debd instruments,

Classiffcaon, Measwrement and Reclassification of Financlal Aszers

The clussification and measurement of financial assets is driven by the entity’s business model for
managing the fnancial assets and the contractual cash Now characieristics of the financial assets. The
classification and measurement of financial assets are descnbed below.

Finanetal Assels af Amortized Cost
Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

#  the asset is held within the Bonk's business mode] whose objective is 1o hold financial assers in
arder 1o collect comraciual cash Mows (“hold 10 collect™); and

# the contractuzal terms of the instrument give rise, on specificd dates, to cash Mows that are solely
payments of principal and merests (5PPD on the principal amount outstancing.

Financial asscts meeting these criteria are measured initinlly at fair value plus transaction costs. They
are subssquently messured ot amoriized cost using the effective interest method, less ony allowance
for ECL. Where the business model i3 (0 hobd sssets to collect contractual cash flows, the Bank
assesacs whether the financial instrumenis’ cash Nows represent 3PP In making this assesament, the
Bank conseders whether the contructual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement,
i.e,, interest incledes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending
risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending amangement (see Mote 3). Where the
contractual terms introduce exposure 1o risk or volatility thot are inconsistent with a basic lending
arrangement, the reluted Gnancial assel ks classified and measured at Fair value through profit or loss
{FVTPL).



Fi; BF

The Bank's financial asse1s al amortized cost are presented in the statement of financial position as
Cazh and Criher Cash Items, Due from BSP, Due from Other Banks, Held-to-Collect (HTC) Finaneisl
Aszets, Loans and Receivables and Refundable deposits (presented under Other Resources pccoum )

Financial Assets ot Fair Value Through Ciher Comprreliensive fncome (#VOCT)
The Bank accounts for financial assets at FYOCT if the assets mect the following conditions:

#  they are keld under a business model whose objective is 1o hold to collect the associated cash
MNows and sell (“hold fo coltect and sell™); and

& the contractual tenms of the financial assets give mse to cash flows that are 5PPI en the principal
sl outstanding.

At initinl recognition, the Bank con make an imevocable election (on an instrument=by-instrument
basis) to designate equity investments as &t FYOCH however, such designation is not permitted iF the
coquity investnent is held by the Bank for trading, The Bank has not designated any equity financial
pssels ol FYOCL

Financial assets at FYOCT are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently,
they are measured at fair value, with no deduction for any disposal costs. Goins and besses arising
Trom changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income, net of any effects arising
from income taxes, and are reported as pant of Revaluation Reserves ncoount in equity. When the
nsget is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previeusly recognized in the Revaluation Reserves
account is nod reclassified fo profil or loss but i reclassified directly 1o Surplus Free account, excepl
for those debt securities classified as FVOCT wherein cumubative fuir valoe gains or losses ire
recyveled 1o profit or loss,

Financial Aszers af FVTPL

Financial assers that are held within a different business model other than “hold to collect™ or “hokd t
collect and sell” arc catcgorized at FWTPL. Funther, irrespective of business model, financial asscts
whose contractual cash flows are not SPPE are accounted for ot FVYTPL, Alse, equity securities are
classificd as financial assets at FWTPL, unless the Bank designates an equity investment that is not
held for trading as a1 FVOCT at initial recognition,

Financial assets at FVTPL are initially measured ot fair value, Subsequently, they are measured a
fair walue with goins or losses recognized in profit or boss,

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cosh fows are 5PPL

The Bank has no outstanding financial asseds at FVTPL.

The Bank can only reclassily Ninancial assews if the objective of its business mode] for monaging those
financial assers changes. Accordingly, the Bank is required o reclassify financial asscts: (1) from
amortized cost to FVTPL, if the objective of the business masde] changes so that the amontized cost
criteria are no longer met; and, (1) from FYTPL to amortized cost, if the objective of the business
mske] changes 20 that the amorized cost enteria star o be met and the charactenistic of the
instrument’s contraciual cash fows mect the ansortized cost criteri.



A change in the objective of the Bank 's business madel wall be effected only at the beginning of dw
next reporting penod following the change in the busimess model.

Effective Interest Rate Method and Tderest Income

Interest income is recorded wsing the effective interest mte (EIR} methed for all financal instrumsnt
measured at amonized cost and Mnancial instrument designated at FYTPL. Interest income on
interest bearing finoncinl assets measured at FVOC] is reconded by using the EIR. method. The EIR
is the raie that exacily discounis estimated fuiwre cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument of, when approprisie, a shorter period, to the nel carrying amound of the
fisancial aswet,

The EIR is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs
that are an integral pan of EIR. The Bank recognizes interest income using a rate of retwrn that
represenis the best estimate of a constant rate of returmn over the expected life of the loan. Hence, it
recopnizes the effect of potentially different inferest rates charged m vorious stuges, amd other
chiracteristics of the product life evele (including prepayments, penalty inberest and charges).

I expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credil
risk, the adjustment is booked s a positive (negative) adjustment to the carrving amount of the asset
in the balance sheet with an increase (reduction) in Interest income. The adjustment is subseguently
amoriized through interest and similor income in the statement of income,

The Bank caleulates interest incomse by applying the EIR 1o the gross camrying amount of financial
assels other than credit-impaired assets.

For financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, intcrest
mcome 15 calculated by applving the effective interest mic 1o the net carrying amount of the financial
assels (after deduction of the loss allowance). 1F the asset is ne bonger eredit-impaired, then the
calculation of interest income revens 1o the gross basis, For Mnancial assets that were credit-
impaired on initial recognition, interest income is caleulated by applying & credit-ndjusted effective
imlerest rate te the amortized cost of the asset. The calculation of interest income does not revert o a
groas basis, even il the credit risk of the asset improves.

Impainment of Financial Assefs

The Bank recoonizes allowance for BECL on a forovard-looking basis associnted with is finamcial
pssets ot nmortized cost, debt secunities at FVOCT, and loan commitmenis issaed,

In recognizing provision for credit losses, the Bank considers a broader range of information in
pssessing credit risk and measuring expected credit losses, including past events, current conditions,
reasonable and supporiable forecasts thar affect collectability of the futune cash fows of the financial
assehs,

The Bank measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the following
financial instruments for which they are measured as 12-month ECL:

#  debt securitics that are identified to have *low credit risk” at the reporting date; and,

e other financial instruments (ether than lease receavables) on which credii risk has not increased
significantly since their initial recognition.
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For these financial nstrumenis, the allowance for credic losses is based on 12-month ECL associated
with the probability of default of a financial instrument in the next 12 months (referred 10 as “Stage 1°
finamcial instrumenis), Unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) subsequent
to the imitial recognition of the financial assed, a lifetime ECL (which are the expected shonfalls in
contractual cash flows, constdering the potential for default at any point during the life of the financial
asset) will be recognized (referred (o as “Stage 2° financial instruments). “Stage 2° financial
instruments also inglude those loan accounts and facilities where the credit risk has improved and
have been reclassified from “Stage 3'. A lifetime ECL shall be recognized for *Swge 3' financial
mstruments, which include linangial insirumenis that are subsequently credit-impaired, as well as
purchosed or oniginated credit-impadired (POCT) asscts.

The Bank’s definition of credit risk and information on how credit risk is mitigated by the Bank are
disclosed in Node 4.

Azsessmend af Signifcant Increase In Credlt Rk

In assessing whether the credit risk on g financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Bank assesses the change in the risk of a default occurming over the remaining life of
the financial instrument. [n making this assessment, the Bank assesses on a periodic basas both
quantitdive and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, incleding historical
experience and forward-looking information as approprate.

The Bank's ECL model idlows a three-stage impairment approach in determining the loss allowanee
o be recopnized in the financial statements:

fa) Stage | - these are credit exposures that are considered *performing” and with no SICE since
initial recognition of with low credit sk, The loss allowance is determined based on a | 2-month
ECL

fis) Stage 2 — these are credit exposures that are considersd ‘under performing” and with SICE since
inataal recogniteon, A lifetime ECL is recognized for thess credit exposures.

fcl Stage 3 - these are credit exposures with objective evidence of impairment and considersd “non-
performimng’. The Bank recopnizes a lifetime ECL for all credit-mmpaired financial assets

LDefinition of Default

fer) Loy and recelvables

The Bank defines a loan instrument as in default, which is aligned with the definition of credit-
impaired, when the borrower is more than 90 days past due on itz contraciual payments, except for
the eleven days past due threshold for microfimance loan pontfolic. As pan of a qualitative
wazessment of whether a customer 15 1n defiaull, the Bank olso considers a variety of instances and
factors that may indicate unlikeliness to pay which may include (a) significant financial difficulty of
the issuer or borrower; (b) the restructunng of a loan by the Bank, for economic or legal reasons
relating 1o the borrower™s financial difficulty, on terms that the Bank would not consider otherwise,
of, () it becoming probabile that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other linancial reorganization.
When such events oceur, the Bank carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the
customer as defaulted.
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An instrument i5 considerad to be no longer in defaull or have cured when the borrower is able 1o
repay the installments i arrears and the account no longer meets any of the default eriteria for o
consecutive period of 180 days within whicl the borrower shall make consecutive payments,

These criteria are consistent with the definition of defult used for intemal credit nsk manapement
purposes that is aligned with the default criteria used for regulatory capital purposes. Such definition
i5 consistently applied in determining PD, LGD, and EAL for each loan pontfolio segment and
throughout the ECL calculations of the Bank,

fhl fervestmnens in ool secwrifies

Investments in debt securitics is assessed as credil-impaired and impairment losses are incurred if,
and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as 4 result of an event that eccurred after the
initial recognition of the secunty (o “loss event™) and that boss event has impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the secuntics. Losses cxpected as a result of future events, shall also be
considered in estimating the ECL.

Measwrement of ECL

The measurement of the ECL reflects: (i) an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined by evalualing a range of possible outcomes: (i) the time value of money; and, (iii)
reasonable and supportable information that is available withoutl undue cost or effort af the reporfing
date aboul past events, current conditions and forecasts of fulure economic conditions,

Measwrement of the ECL is determined by a probability-weighted estimaie of credit losses over the
expoctod life of the financial imsiruiment,

The Bank's detailed ECL measurement, as determined by the management, is disclosed in Mode 4,

Hc'.ln'ugu.l'ﬂ.‘.;’m inf Finpmoial dziel

Modiffcation af Loans

When the Bank derecognizes a financial asset through rencgotiation or madification of contractual
cash Mlows of loans 1o customers, the Bank assesses whetler or not the new temms are substantially
different to the original tenmns.

The Bank considers, among others:

» il the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the modification merely reduces the contractunal
cash flows to amounts the bormower is expected to be able to pay;

whether any substantial new terms are introduced that will affect the nsk profile of the loan;
significant extension of the kean term when the borrower is not in financial diffcalty;
significant change in the interest rate;

change in the currency the loan is denominated in; and/or,

inseriion of collateral, other secuniy or credit enhancements that will significantly affect the
credil rsk associated with the loan

I the terms are substontinlly different, the Bank derecognizes the financial asset and recognizes &
“new" asaet a1 fair value, and recaleulates o new effectve inlerest rate for the assel. The dode of
renegotiation is consequently considersd to be the date of inital recognition For impairmem
calculation, incheding for the purpose of determining whether o SICR has ocourred, However, the
Bank also assesses whether the new (Tincial asset recognized i3 deemed to be eredit-impained o
mitial recogmition, especially in circumstances where the renegotiation was driven by the debtor being
unable to make the originally agreed paymenis, Ditference between the carrving amount of the old
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financial asset derecognized and the fair value of the new financial asset is recognized as gain or boss
in profit or loss upon derecognition. As to the impact on ECL measurement, the expected Fair value of
the “new™ asset is treated as the final cash Now from the existing financial asset at the date of
derecognition, Such amount is included in the calculation of cash shortfalls from the exisling financial
assed that are discounted from e expected date of derecopnition 1o the reporting date using the
original effective interest rate of the existing financial asset

[T the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or modification does not result in
derccognition, and the Bank recalculates the gross carrying amount based on the revised cash flows of
the financial asset and recognizes o modification gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross carrying
amount 15 recaleulated by discounting the modified cash fows of the original effective intenest rate
(or eredit-adjusted effective interest rate for POC] financial assets), As to the impagt on ECL
measurement, the derecognition of the existing financial asset will result in the expected cash Mows
arising from the modified financial asset to be included in the caleulation of cash shortfalls from the
existing financil asscl

Derecapnition of Fimancial Assets other than Modificanon

A financial asset {or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of financial asscts)
is derecognized when the contructual rights to reecive cash flows from the fnancial instruments
expire, of when the finoncial assets and all substantial risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to another party. If the Bank neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewdrds of ownership and continues to control 1he fransferred asset, the Bank recopgnizes its refained
interest in the asset and an associated lability for amounts it may have to pay. IFihe Bank reiaiss
substaniially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Bank
continues to recognize the financial asset and a collatemlized borrowing for the procesds received.

: 1 Financial fnstnuments

Financial assels and financial liabilities nre offset and the resulting net amount, considered as a single
financial asser or financial lability, is reported in the statement of financial position when there i o
legally enfiorceable right to offsel the recognized amounts and there is an intention to wetle on a met
basis, or realize the asset and seitle the habality simultancously. The right of set-off must be available
at the end of the reporting period, that is. it is not contingent on future event. It must also be
enforceable in the normal course of business, in the event of default, and in the event of insolvency or
bankruptcy; and, must be legally enforceable for both entity and all counterparties to the financial
inslruments,

Bank Premises, Fumiture, Fixtures and Equipment
Land is stated at cost less albowance for impainment losses, if any. All other bank premises, fumiture,

fixtures and squipment are stated 3t cost less sccumulated depreciation, amortization and any
impairment in value.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly attributuble costs of bringing the assert
1o working condition for its intended use. Expenditures for additions, major improvements and
renewals are capitalized while expendinires for repairs and maintenance are charped 1o expense os
incurmed.
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Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

Building and improvements 510 25 vears
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3o § years
Transporntation equipment 3105 years

Leasehold improvements are amonized over the term of the lease or uscful lives of the ATIprovEments
of 10 years, whichever is slorter

An asset’s currying smount is written down immediately 1o its recoverable amount if the asset's
CAITYIng amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

The residual values, estimated useful lives and method of depreciation and amontization of bank
premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

Aav item of bank premises, furnituse, fixtures and equipment, including the related accuniulaned
depreciation and amortization and any impairment losses, is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected 10 arise from the continued use of the assel. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item) is presented as pan of Gain on sale of non-financial assets under
Chher Operating Income aceount in the stalement of income in the year the item is derecognized

Investmrent Properiics

Investment properties pertain to parcels of land, building and improvements acquired by the Bank in
settlement of loans from defoulting borrowers through foreclosure or dagion in payment which are
held either 1o eamn rental income or for capital appreciztion or both, but not for usc in the production or
supply of goads or services or for administrative purposes,

Investment properties are measured initially ot cost. Directly attributable cost incurred such as legal
fees. transfer taxes and other transaction costs are eapitalized a5 part of the carrying amount of
ivestment propertics.

The Bank adopted the cost model in measuring its investment propertics; hence, these are carried
¢ast less asccumulated depreciation and any impairment in value, if any. Investment properties, except
land, are depreciated on a straight-line basis over a period of 10 years.,

Investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss on the disposal of an
mvestment property is recognized in profit or loss and is presented as pan of Gain on sale of
non-fimancial assets under (ther Operating Income in the statement of income in the year of disposal.

Direct operating expenses related 1o investment properties, such as repairs and maintenance, and real
estile taxes are nonmally charged against current operations in the period in which these costs are
incurred.

Qther Resources
Other resources pertain 10 other assets that are controlled by the Bank as a result of past events.

These are recognized in the fisancial stiements when it is probable thot the future economic benefiis
will flow to the Bank and the asset has o cost or value that can be measured reliably.



Intangible Assets

Indnngpible assets inclede computer softwarne licenses, which is presented as pant of Other Resources
ACC NI, .-"|.l.'::|uu|::’.‘ COITHPEEr soltware licenses e 4,'.'.|'-|I:||i..r|.'|l an the basis of the costs incumead 1o
acquire and install the specific software. These costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the
expectsd usetul hie of three 10 seven yvears. Costs associfed with maintaining computer software are
cxpensed os mcurred. o addilion, ¢ ompuler softwore licenses ane subjedt 1o impairment ieshing as
descnbed i “lmpanment of on-Fmancial Assets”,

When an |:|‘.:5.n|;||ﬂ.,: A%Ge] 1= |I:|~.|1|1'\..';| ol, the Eitin or |5 -.||'\.|1||5-::|I i= determimed az the dilTerence
between the proceeds and the carrving amsount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.

Fimancial Lepbalaties

Financial liabilities, which include deposit liabilities, bills payable and other liabilities {except tax-
related payables) are recognized when the Bank becomes a party 1o the contraciual terms of the
s el

Al imfeEresi-relied ..:I'.:|:b:-,'~: mecuimed on a limancial I|.|h|I|1_':. e rl.'L'IIFII'..I'I\.'\l:l A% AN 2XNEnSE In |:-||I'I_|[ i
boss as part of Interest Expense in the statement of ieome

Dieposil liabilities and other lisbilities are recopnized intinlly at their fair values and subseueently
measured al amortized cost, using effective interest method for maturities beyond one year, less
seltlement pavmenis,

Bills payable ase recognized initially at fair value, squivalent to the 1ssue proceeds {fur vales of
consideration received), net of direct issue costs. Bills payable are subsequently measured at amortized
cosk. Any difference between proceeds, net of transaction costs, and the redemption value is recognized
in profit or loss over the period of the bormrowings using the effective interest methgxl

vidend distnbabions 1o shasgholders are ||:;,:|l;:',|'||.-'|.'\-.| a= financial liabilitics when the divadends are
declured by the Bank

Financial linbilities are derecomzed from the siatement of financial positicn ondy when the obhgations
are extinguished either I!|'||q.::|j"_|'. discharpe, cancellation of expiration. The difference between the
carrying amount of the fmancial liobalny derecognized and the consideration paid or paeable is
recognized in profit or loss

Equity
Capital stock represents the nominal value of shares that lave been issued.

Surplus reserve pertains 1o the appropriation of the Sumplus account, brought sbout by cases when te
allowance for credit fosses on “Stage 17 [oan aceownts computed under the requirements of PFRS %5
less than the 1% GLLP required by the BSP. This is in pursuant to BEP Circular Mo, 1011,
Gruidelines on the Adoption of PFRS 9, which roquires financial instiufions 10 sed wp GLLE o set up
an appropriation to surplus equivakent 1o the difference of 1% of all outstanding 'Stage 1" on-balance
sheet loan accounts and the computed ECL under PFRS 9,

Surplus free represents all current and pnor ru.'||-.:a.! resulis of operations as disclosed in the statement
il |1r\-.:-||| ar base, reducad by the amount of dividends declared.
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Revaluation reserves consist of:

fa) Net unrealized fair value gains or losses arising from remeasurements of inancial assets al
FYOCT: and,

{) Remcasurements of post-emploviment defined bencefit plan comprising of net accumulated
actuarial gains or losses arising from experience adjustments and other changes in actuarial
assumptions, and actual retum on plan assets (excluding account included in net interest).

Provisions and ;'gu;i[.l:g-_l:'ng'mx

Provisions are recognized when present obligations will probably lead 10 an outflow of cconomic
respurces and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of the outflew may still be
uncertain. A present obligation arzes from the presence of a legal or constructive obligation that has
reslied from past events.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditere required to settle the present obligation, based on
thie most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting period, inchding the risks and
uncertainties associnted with the present obligation, Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. When time value of money is material, long-term provisions are discounted 1o
their present values using o pretax rate that reflects market assessments and the risks specific o the
obligation. The increase in the provision due 1o passage of time is recognized as INeTes! expense,
Provisions are reviewed of the end of each reponting period and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.

In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resource as o result of present obligations is
considered improbable or remote, or the amount o be provided for cannot be measured reliably, no
liability is recognized in the financial statements. Similarly, possible inflows of economic benefits to
the Bank that do not yet meet the recognition criteria of an asset are considered contingenl assets,
hence, are not recognized in the financial statements. On the other hand, any reimbursement that the
Bank can be virmally certain to collect from a third party with respect to the obligation is recognized
a5 o separate assel nol exceeding the amount of the related provision.

"ELE - i - Frrlon
Revenue is recognized only when (or as) the Bank satisfies a performance obligation by transferring
control of the promised services to the customer. A contract with a customer that results in a
recognized financial instrument in the Bank s financial stalements may be partially within the scope
of PFRS 9 and partially within the scope of PFRS 15, Revenne from Cortracts with Customers. In
such case, the Bank first applies PFRS 9 to separate and measyre the part of the contract that is in-
scope of PFRS 9, and then applics PFRS 15 o the residual part of the contract, Expenses and costs, if
any, wre recognized in profit or loss wpon utilization of the assels or services or o the date these are
incurred. All finance costs are reported in profit or loss on accrual basis,

Refier to *Financial Instrament - Initial recognition and subsequent measurement” for the policies on
iflerest income recognitien,

The Bank alse cams service Tees on various banking services and gains on sale of properties which

are supporied by contracts approved by the parties invelved, These revenues are accounted for by the
Bank in accordance with PFRS 15

LR




=]13-

For revenues 1o be accounted for under PFES 15, the following mformation abeut the nature and
timing of safisfaction of perfermance obligations in contracis with customers including significant
payment ferms, and the related revenue recognition policics:

fa) Fees and commissions —are generally recognized when the service has been provided. These
include commissions and fees arising from loans, deposits and other banking transactions and are
taken up as income based on ngreed terms and conditions,

il Crafm ewr xafe af menr=financial axsers — 15 WI,Wi:."J.El.l when the title 1o tha pmp-cl'lil:k is transfierred
it the buyer or when the collectibility of the entire sales price is reasonably assured. Thes is
in¢lwided in profit or loss as pan of Other Operating Income

Leares — Bank gz Lessee

For any new contracts entened imo, the Bank considers whether a contract is, or coniains, a lease. A
lease is defined as a contract, or part of 8 contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the
underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To apply this definition, the
Bank assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations which are whether:

¢ 1he contract containg an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or
implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available 1o the Bank;

« the Bank has the right (o obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
identificd asset throughout the peniod of use, considering 115 rights within the defined scope of the
comtract; and,

» the Bank has the right to direet the use of the identified asset throughout the penod of use. The
Rank azsess whether it has ihe right to dirsct *how and for whaot purpose’ the asset 1% used
throughout the penod of use.

Al lease commensement date, the Bank recognizes a right-of-use ssset and a lease lability in the
statement of financial position. The right-of-use nsset is measured ot cost, which is made up of the
initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Bank, on estimate of
any costs 10 dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in
gdvance of the lease commencement date (net of any imcentives received). Subsequently, the Bank
depreciates the right-of-use asset on o straight-line basis from the lease commencement date 1o the
earlier of the end of the usefl life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Bank
also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist (sec Note 2). On the
other hand, the Bank measures the lease linbility ot the present value of the lease payments unpsid a1
the commencement date, discounted using the inerest mte implicit in the lease if that rate is readily
available or the Bank's incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments include fixed payments
{including in-substance fixed) less lease incentives receivable, ifany, variable lease payments based
o an index or rate, amounts expected to be payvable under a residual value guarantee, and payments
arising from optiens (either rencwal or termination) reasonably certain to be exercised.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for
imterest, It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or iF there are changes in in-
substance fxed payments. When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment 1s
reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the Aight-of-use psaet is already reduced to zero,
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The Bank has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using the
practical expedients. Instead of recognizing a nght-of-use osset and lease Lability, the payments in
relation to these are recognized as an expense i profit or loss on a straighi-line basis over the lease
term

{On the statement of financial position, right-of-use asscts and lease linkalities have been presented
under Bank Premises, Furnitune, Fixtures and Equipment acoount and Ciher Liabilitics account,

respectively,

Foreign Corrency Tonsnctions and | ranslateons

The secounting recornds of the Bank are maimiained in Philippine pesos.  Foreign currency
transactions during the year are translated into the functional currency at exchange rates which
approximate those prevailing on transaction dales

Foreign currency gains and losses resulting from the setilement of such iransactions and from the
tramslation ol _:,.'uar-{:nl_:l 1.:;~.|;'|1,'1r|3c rates of MNEEAFyY asaeis andd liabililics dencininated in 1iu-ru1gn
currencies are recognized in profit or loss.

The Bank s hﬁnhp:__n;'-ﬁ furniture, fixtures and equipment, investment propertics, imangible assets,
ancd other non-financial assets ane subject to impairment testing. Al other individual assets or cash-
gencrating units are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
ihe camying amount of those asselts may not be recovernble,

For purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which thene are
separately identifiable cash fMows (cash-generating units). As a result, assets are tested for
impairment either individually or at the cash-genemting unit kevel.

Irnpairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset's or cash-generting unit’s carrying
amount exceeds i3 recoverable amounts, which is the higher of its fnir value less cosis o sell and its
value in use. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market condifions, less
costs o sell and value in use. In determining vabie in use, management estimintes the expected future
cash flows from each cash-generating unit and determines the suitable interest rate in osder to
calculate the present value of those cash flows, The dats used for impairment testing proceduses are
directly linked to the Bank's latest approved budget, adjusted as necessary 1o exclude the effects of
asset enhancements. Discount factors are determined individually for each cash-generating unit and
reflect management s asscsament of respective risk profiles, such as market and asset-specific risk
factors.

All assets are subsequently reassessed For indications that an impairment [oss previously recognized
may no longer exist and the carrying amount of the asset is adjusted 10 the recoverable amount
resulting in the reversal of the impairment loss

Emnplovee Benefits
The Bank provides posi-employment benefits to employees through a defined benefit plan and other
employee benefits which are recognized and measured as follows:

Prst-emplovvrent Defined Benfit i
A defined benefit plan is o post-cmployment plan that defines an amouni of post-employment benefit
that an employee will receive en retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age,
years of service and salary. The legal ebligation for any benefits from this kind of post-cmployment

LRI
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plan remains with the Bank, even if plan assets for funding the defined benefit plan have been
acquired. Plan assets may mclude assets specifically designated to a long-term benefit fund, as well as
qualifying insurance policies. The Bank's defined benefit post-employment plan covers all regular
full-time employees. The pension plan is tax-qualified, non-contrbutory and administered by a
trusies,

The assct or lisbility recognized in the statement of financial position for a defined benefit plan is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of
plan assets, The defined benefit obligation is calculsted annually by independent actuasies using the
projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the cstimated fture cash outfows for expected benefil payments using a discount rute
derived from the interest rates of a zero coupon government bonds, thet are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid and thot have ferms to maturity approximating o the tenms
of the related post-employment lisbility, BVAL provides evaluated prices that ane based on market
observalions from contributed sources,

Remcasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions and the return on plan assets (excleding amount included in net
interest) are reflected immediately in the statement of financial position with a charge or credit
recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Net interest is calculated
by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period, unless there is a plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement during the reporting period.  The ¢alculation also takes into account of any
changes in the net defined benefit linbility or asset during the period as o result of contributions and
henefit paymenis. Net interest is reporied as part of Interest Expense or Interest Income account in the
statcment of income.

Past service costs are recopnized immedintely in profit or loss in the period of o plan amendment or
curtailment.

Termination Beneliis

Temnmination benefits are payable when employment is ierminated by the Bank before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepis voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Bank recognizes termination benefits at the earlier of when it can no longer withdraw
the offer of such benefits and when it recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of
PAS 37, Provisions, Convingent Liahilities and Contingent Aszets, and involves the payment of
termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the ofler,
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the reporting period are discounted to their present
value.

Hewnarses
The Bank recognizes a liability and an expense for accrual of bonuses. The Bank recognizes a
provision where it is contractually obliged 1o pay the benefits.

Compensaled Absences

Unovailed leaves at the end of reporting period, included in Accrued expenses under Other Liabilitics
account in the statement of financinl position, are sccreed at the amount payable to employees hased
on the Bank's benefits policy. Each regular employee is entitled 1o 15 days vacanion and sick leaves
each year. Five of the vacation leaves are convertible into cash when unused and can be carried
forward 1o the next taxable year. The maximum vacation leaves that can be accumulated by cach
employee is 45 days
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Sick leaves, on the other hand, are non-convertible but cumulative,

Bormowing Cosls

Borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the period in which they are incurred, except to the
extent that they are capitalized. Borrowing costs that are directly attributoble to the acquisition,
canstruction or production of a qualifying asset (i.e., an asset that takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale) are capitalized as part of cost of such asset. The capitalization
of borrowing costs commences when expenditures for the asset and borrowing co#13 are being
incurred and activities that are necessary (o prepare the assel for its intended use or sale are in
progress. Capitalization ceases when substantially all such activities are complete,

Investment income eamed on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying &ssets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

[ncome Taxes
Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of current tax and deferred tax not
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, i any.

Current tax assets or labilitics comprise those claims from, or obligations to, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are uncollected or unpaid at the end of the
reporting period. They are caleulated using the tax rates and 1ax laws applicable to the fiscal periods
to which they relwte, based on the taxable profit for the yvear. All changes to cument 1ax assets of
liabilities are recognized as a component of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method, on temporary differcnces at the end of each
reporting period between the tax base of assets and Fabilitics and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes. Under the liability method, with certain exceptions, deferred tax liabilities are
recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized for all
deductible temporary differences and the camyforward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits (o
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognized 1o the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profit will be available 1o allow such deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when (he asset is realized or the liability is setled provided such tax rates have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. The camrying amount of deferred tax assels is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that 1t is probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset 10 be utilized,

The measurement of defierred tax linbilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the meanner in which the Bank expects, ai the end of the repoming period, 10 recover o setile the
carrving amount of is assets and labilines,

Most changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as o component of tax expense i
profit or Joss, except to the extent that it relates 1o items recognized in other comprehensave income or
directly in equity. In this case, the 1ax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if the Bank has a legally enforceable nght 1o

set-off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred 1axes relate W the same
taxation authority.

LIRIRNTY




Related Pany Transactions and Relationships
Related party transactions are transfers of respurces, services of ohligations between the Bank and its
reluted parties, regardless of whether a price is charged

Parties arc considered to be related if one party has the ability 1o control the other party or exercise
signilicand influence over the other pany in making Minancial and operating decizsions.  These include:
() individuals owning, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control or are
controlled by, or under common control with the Bank; (b) associntes; (¢) individuals owning,
directly or indirectly, an interest in the voding power of the Bank that gives them significant influence
over the Bank and close members of the family of any such individual; and, (d) the Bank's funded
refirement plan,

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is dirccted o the substance of the
relationship and not merely on the legal form

Dilusted earmings pershare is compuied by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shanes
outstanding 1o assume conversion of dilwlive potential shares. Currently, the Bank does not have
dilwtive potential shares outstanding, hence, the diluted earings per share is equal to the basic
camings per share,

Sy : [ “the arting

Any post-year-end event that provides additional information about the Bank’s financial pesition at
the end of reporting period (adjusting event) 15 rellected in the financial statements. Post-year-end
events that are not adjusting events, ifany, are disclosed when material (o the financial statements

Significant Accounting Judgments anid Estimates

The preparation of the Bank’s financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires management to
make judgments and estimates that affect the amounts reporied in the financial statements and related
nofes, Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experence and
oiher factors, including expeciations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circansunces. Actual results may ultimately differ from these estimates,

J:Elgl!‘mr‘lh

In the process of applying the Bank's sccounting pelicies, management has made the following
judgment, apart from those involving estimation, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Evaluation of Business Meodels Applicd and Testing the Cash Flow Characteristics of Financial
Axxers in Monaping Financial lisdrimenis

The Bank manages its financial assets based on business models that maintain sdequate level of
financial assets to match its expected cash outflows, largely its core deposit funding ansmg from
customers' withdrawals and continuing loan disbursements to borrowers, while maintaining a
portfolio of financial assets for asset and liability management and regulatory requirement purposes.
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The Bank developed business models which reflect how it manages its portfolio of inancial
instruments. These business models nead not be assessed at entity level or as a whole but shall be
applicd ai the level of a porifolio of financial instrurments {i.e,, group of financial instruments that are
managed together by the Bank) and not on an instrument-by-instrument basis (i.¢., not based on
intention or specific charactenistics of individual financial instrument},

In determining the classification of o financial instrument, the Bank evaluaies in which business
miode]l a financial insrement or a porifolio of financial instruments belong to taking At
consideration the objectives of each business model established by the Bank {e.g., held-for-trading,
gencrating accrual income, direct matching to a specific liability) as those relate to the Bank s
investment, trading and lending sirategies. Furthermore, the Bank assesses whether the contractual
terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash fows that are SPP1 on the principal
outstanding, with interest representing time value of moncey and credit risk associated with the
principal amount outstanding. The assessment as 1o whether the cash flows meet the test is made in
the curmzncy in which the financial asset is denominated.  Any other contractual term that changes the
liming or amount of cash flows (unless it is a variable interest rate that represents time value of
maney and credit ek ) does ot meel the amonized cost cnferna.

In addition, if more than an infrequent sale is made out of & portfolio of financial assets carmed ot
amortized cost, an entity should assess whether and how such sales are consistent with the abjective
of collecting contractual cash flows. In making this judgment, the Bank considers certain
circumstances documented in its business model munual to assess that an increase in the frequency of
value of sales of financial instrumens in a particular period is not necessasily inconsistent with an
HTC business model if the Bank can explain the reasons for those sales and why those sales do not
reflect a change in Bank's invesiment objective for the business model.

Recogmition of Provisions and Comtingemcies

Judgment is exercised by management 1o distinguish the difference between provisions and
contingencies. Policies on recognition of provisions and contingencies are discussed in Note 2. and
refevant disclosures ane presented in Mole 22

In dealing with the Bank"s various legal procecdings, its estimate of the probable costs that may anse
from claims and contingencies has been developed in consulistion and coordination with the Bank's
imtemal and external counsels acting in defense for the Bank's legal cases ond are based upon the
analysis of probable resulis.

Although the Bank does not believe that its dealing on these proceadings will have material adverse
effect on the Bank s financial position, it is possible that future results of operations could be matenially
affected by changes in the estimates or in the effectiveness of the sirategies conducted relating 1o those

procesdings,
Estimates

Following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment 1o the
carrying amounts of assels and liabilities within the next reposting period.

Estimation of Allewance for ECL on foans and receivalies

The Bank uscs a net flow rate model to calculate ECL for its loans and receivables, together with loar
commitments and financial guarantee contracts, if any. The allowance for impairment is based on the
ECLs nssociated with the probability of default of a financial instrument in the next 12 months, unless
there has been a S1CR since origination of the financial instrument, in such case, a lifetime ECL for
the instrument is regognized,
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The Bank has established a policy 1o perfonm an assessment, ol the end of exch reponting pened,
whether a financial instrament’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by
considenng the change in the nsk of default occuming over the remaining life of the financial
instrumeni,

The Bank's ECL caleulations are outputs of models with a number of underlying assumptions which
inelude: the Bank's eriteria for assessing iFthere has been o significant increase in eredil risk; and,
development of expected credit loss models, including the choice of inputs relating 1o macroeconomic
variables.

The calculation of eredit-impaimment provisions also involves expert credil judgement o be applied
based upon counterpanty information received from varous sowrces including relationship managers
and on external market information.

The analysis of the allowance for impaioment and the ECL assessed on financial assets are shown in
Pole 4,

Estimation of Impairment of Invesiovent Properiies

I assessing impairment for investrment properties, the Bank detenmines the estimated recoverable
amount based on the recent sale transactions of similar assets with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the date the transactions occurred. Though management believes that
the assemptions used in the estimation of fair values used in impairment pssessment are appropriate
and rexsonable, significant changes in those assumptions may materially affect the assessment of
recoverable values and any resulting impairment loss could have a material adverse effect on the
results of operations,

A of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the carrying amount and impaimment losses recognized by the
Bank on investment propenics, on the other band, are discussed in Note 12

Falwation of Pest-erplovenent Defined Benefit Plan

The determination of the Bank's obligation and cost of post-employvment and other retirement
benefits is dependent on the selection of cerlain assumptions used by actuarics in calculating such
amounts, Those assumplions are deseribed in Note 19 and include, among others, discount rates and
galary increase rates. A significant change in any of these aciuarial assumptions may gencrally affect
the recognized expense, other comprebensive income o losses and the carying amount of the
retirerment bemedit azset or obligation in the next reporting perisd,

The amounts of retirement benefit obligation and expense and an analysis of the movements in the
estimated present value of defined benefin obligation, as well as the significant assumptions used in
exlimating such obligations are presented in Note 19,

Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Bank recognizes thot nsk mansgement i an aclivity critical to its sucoess. 1015 commiied to
ensure constant adherence 1o best practices and standards and to apply prodence and accountabality in
its risk-taking activities. The Bank exposes itsclf 1o o myrind of risks arising from the use of financial
instruments. In particular, these financial risks are mainly exposure to credit, liquidity and market
risks. Consequently, the Bank has put in place the appropriate risk management structures, policies,
and processes o address each type of risk. The key risk processes involve identifying, measuring,
controlling and monitoring risks.




L& anpienent Sinectune
The following structure shows the Bank's overall approach to risk management:

ferl B of Divectors

The BOD has the ultimate responsibility for approving and periodically reviewing the risk strategics
and significant policies of the Bank. 11 adopts palicies and guidelines to govern the safe nnd prudent
functioning of the Bank with the end in view of effectively managing all risks in its activities, The
policics to be formulated include, but not limited to, lending, investing, Tund sourcing, liquidity
management, personnel administration, and imernal control.

il Rick (versight Committes

Risk Oversight Commitiee (ROC) is the board level committee responsible for the development and
oversight of the risk management program of the Bank. It oversees the system of limits to
discretionary authority that the BOD delegates 1o management, ensures that the system remaing
effective, that the limits are observed and that immeadinte comective actions are taken whenever limits
are brenchied.

fel Senior Management

Senior Management is responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of effective
management program. They also ensure complinnee with laws and regulations and creste systems 1o
measure and monitor performance.

fefd  Risk Uinir
Risk Unit (RL) performs an mdependent risk governance funcrion within the Bank.

It is tasked with identifying, mensuring. controlling and monitoring existing and emenging risks
inherent in the Bank. The unit develops and employs risk assessment tools to facilitate nsk
identification and measurement. 1 i% responsible for developing and implementing the framework for
policies und practices to assess and manage enterprise-wide risks. [t also develops and endorses risk
tolerance limits for approval of the BOD through ROC, and monitors compliance with the approved
risk tolerance limits. 1t regularly reports to the BOD, through the ROC, the resalts of its risk
monitoring

e Evecwtive Crooie Cowmimiiioe

A board level committee responsible to oversee the credit risk-taking activities, quality and
profitability of the credit portfolio, and credit evaluation process. All credit proposals beyond the
credit approving limit of the Credit Committe passes through this committes for final appreval, This
committee also endorses credit proposals beyvond its approving limit to the BOD for final approval.

o Asser-Linhiliny Monagement Cominittee

A management level commitice responsible for the overall management of the Bank's liguidity risks
It monitors the Bank's liquidity position and reviews the impact of strategic decisions on lquidity. It
is responsible for managing liquidity risks and ensuring that the Bank's exposures remain within
established tolerance levels.,

Ve



(gl Complianoe Unit

This unit is responsible fof reviewing any legal or regulatory matters that could have a signi ficant
mipact on the Bank's financial statements and compliance with laws and regubations. It reviews the
effectiveness and adequacy of the system for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations. The
Chief Compliance OfTicer (CCO) regularly reports 1o the Corporate Governance Committee and to
the BOD.

fhd Fevernal Awdle Depor et

Intemal Audit Depamtment ([AD) provides an independent asscaament of the Bank's management and
effectiveness of existing intemal controf systems through sdherence testing of processes and conirols
across the organization. The TAD audits risk management processes throughout the Bank. 1t employs
o risk-based pudit approach that examines both the adeguacy of the procedures and the Bank’s
compliance with the procedunes. It discusses the results of all assessments with management, and
reports its findings and recommendations to the Awdit Commitiee of the BOD.

Minrket Risk

The Bank s exposed to marked risk through its use of financial instruments and spocifically w inierest
rate risk and certain other price risk which resulted from its opersting, investing and financing
gCtivities.

ferd Imteresr Rove Rizk
The Bank fiollows a pnn.l-l:l:'ll |'|-cr|'i|."1-.-' Ml 1:|'.1|'|:'|.11i|1%'_ 1% azeets and labilities 20 as w ensure tha CEPOSUNE
to fluctuations in interest rates are kept within accepiable limits.

Az a result of these, the Bank™s exposune (o mterest e Mustuations, and other market risks, i3
significantly reduced.

The Bank, in kecping with banking industry practice, maintaing a large portion of its deposit base on
shori-term deposits. Savings and demand accounts, and time deposit accounts constitute 50.4% and
19.6%, respectively, of the total deposit Liabilities as of December 31, 2021 and 80.58% and 19,2%,
respectvely, us of December 31, 2020, Rates on time deposits and special savings accouant gre
usually priced according to the amount deposited

Az ol December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Bank's leans and other receivables have fixed interest rates.

The following table provides for the effective interest rates profile of the Bank’s Nnancial asselis and
lsakilaties as of December 31, 200 and 2020
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(b Feretn Currency Rizk

The Bank hus no significant exposure 1o foreign currency risks as most iransactions are denominated
in Philippine pesos, its functional currency. Nis foreign currency denominated cash as of

December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted to both ROOT million, which is recorded as part of Due from
other banks in the statements of finoncel positbon (see Note ),

foi Chiker Price Risk

The Bank's market price risk arises from its financial assets at FYOCI The Bank maneges
exposures 1o price risk by monitoring the changes i the market price of the investments,

The observed volanlity rates of the fair valees of the Bank's investment securites and their
impact on the Bank s profit before tax and equily o5 o1 Decernber 31, 2021 and 2020 arc
summarized below. These percentages have been determined using standard deviation besed on
the average market volatility in security prices in the previous |2 months.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the potential loss of the Bank s camings arising from the inability to review and
analyze requests for eredil to determine likelihood of repayment. This includes the failure to monage
the risk that loss is incurred if counterpany docs not fulfill its financial obligations in a timely
manner. Managing credit risk involves defining the principles and parameters goveming credil
petivities at various levels, Le. strategic level, portfolio level down to individual transaction of

pccount level,

The following tools, among others, are used in identifying, asscssing and managing credit risk:

»  Established credit policies, asset allocations and concentration limits, collateral scceplance
criteria, target market and clearly defined approving authorities;

« Defined documentation policies of approved credit lines;

s Independence of eredit control and monitoring functions from the credit risk-taking function;

o  Periodic monitoring of individual account performance;

-

Regular review of the adequacy of valuation reserves;

LRI
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*  Active loan |:||:||_'||_'|_'|Ii;:|- minagement bo determbne the quality of the loan portfolio, including risks
associated with particular industry sectors, loan size and maturity, monitoring portfolio growih,
collestion performance and delinquency trends, trend of non-performing loans, concentration
risk, and other performance indicators; and,

+  Close monitoring of remedial accounts.

Credit Cuality Analysis

The following table sets out information about the credit quality of loans and other receivables, HTC
fiancial asseis and financial assets at FYOCL As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, there are na

POCI financial nssets in the Bank's Nnancial statements,

As ol December 30, 2021

Slage 0 Stagy 2 Siage 1 Total
Lioams and other receivables
Performieg:
Current FI#05324373 P B~ P05 224273
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Centeerirations of Credit Risg

Excessive concentration of lending poses undue risk on the Bank's asset quality,

The Bank belizves that good diversification across economic sectors and kinds of borrowers will

E{:xxL‘ﬂ. this risk.

RU reviews the Bank’s loan portfolio monthly, in line with its policy of avoiding significant credit

concentration 1o specific industey or group of bormowers,
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To maintain the quality of its loan portfolio, the Bank keeps its risk tolerance limits on asset quality
loweer than the industry ratio and enforce a stringent policy on credit evalumion, review and
monitoring. Credit concentration profile as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 is presented in Note 10,

Credir Risk Asvessonea

All leans and receivables are subjected to evaluation for possible losses. The Bank’s estimation of
credit exposure for risk management purposes is complex and requires the use of models, s the
exposure varies with changes in market conditions, expected cash flows, and the passage of time.
The assessment of credit rigk of a portfolio of assets requires further estimations as to the PDs
occurring, of the associated loss ratios, and of default correlations between countemanics:
accordingly, such credit risk is measured using probability of default (PD), exposure at default
(EAD), and loss given default {LGD), for purposes of measuring ECL.

The Bank uscs its internal credit risk rating system (ICRRS) to determine any evidence of potential
deteriortion in the quality of an inarument that 1ake into consideration both quantitative and
qualitative criteria. The rating system classifies performing accounts with weighted score from
ICRRS of 70% and above, indicating an extremely strong capacity of the counterpanty to meet
fimancial commitments down to accounts with weighted score of legs than 50%, demonstrating
weakness in the counterparty’s economic and financial condition that could lead 1o payment default
on financial commitments. The ICRRS established by the Bank takes into consideration both
quantitative and qualitative characteristics of the borrowers, Past due accounts, accounts identified
for phase-out and those that exhibit the characteristics of classified loans shall be risk-rated following
the guidelines on credit classification per BSP Manual of Regulations for Banks and under the BSP
Circular No, 1011, Le., Especially Mentioned, Substandard, Doubtful or Loss. These guidelines are
uscd by the Bank 1o assign the individually assessed loan or a group of loans within a particular
portfolio segment 1o a specific stage category under the PFRS 9 loan impairment standards (i.e.
Stage 1,2, 1,

In assessing accounts subject (o individual assessment, the Bank has established o materiality
threshold of P1O.0 million for all exposures, Such threshold shall be regularly reviewed at the end of
reporting period 1o ensure that it appropriately captures what the Bank considers as material items of
boan for individual assessment. The provision for ECL for individually assessed exposures shall
reflect consideration of the facts and circumstances that affect the repayment of each individual loan
a8 of evaluation date.

A periodic assessment of credit quality may improve the borrower's weighted score or it could lend to
e oF more sconng downgrades over time;, hence could lead to the transfer of credit exposure in
differemt stages of impairment.

For the Bank's debt securities, credit ratings published by reputable external rating agency (such os
Standard & Poor’s) are used. These ratings are continuously monitored and updated. The PD
associated with each rating is determined based on realized default mies over the previous 12 months,
as published by the rmting agency.

Assessment of Sigmificant Increase tn Crediy Risk

The Bank considers low credit risk for listed debt security when its eredit risk rting is equivalent to a
globally understood definition of *investment grade’ (which should be from atleast one major rating
agency ). other deit sccurities are considered 10 be low eredit risk when they have a low risk of default
and the issuer has a strong capacity 1o meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term.



The criteria for determining whether credit nisk has increased significantly vary by portfolio and
include quantitative changes in probabilities of default and qualitative factors, including a backstop
based on delinguency, The credit risk of a particular exposure is deemed 1o have increased
significantly since initinl recognition if, based on the Bank's intemal credil assessment, the bormower
or counterparty is determined to kave well-defined credit weaknesses. Under the Bank®s ICRRS,
these are exposures rated at least Substandard. For exposures with o internal credit risk rating
performed. if contractual payments are more than a specified days past due threshold, the credit risk is
deemed 1o have increased significantly since initial recognition. Depending on the number of days
past due which differ across the various products of the Bank, a credit exposure may be transferred to
Stage 2 or Stage 3. Days past due are determined by counting the number of days since the carliest
elapsed due date in respect of which full payment hos not been received, In subsequent reporting
periods, if the credit risk of the Ninancial instrunsent improves such that there is no longer a SICR
since initial recognition, the Bank shall revert to recognizing a 12-month ECL. As a general rule, an
upgrade or trunsfer of credit exposure from Stage 3 1o Stage | is allowed when there is sufficient
evidence to support that full cellection of principal and interest is probable, consistent with the
Bank's definition of curning period.

Expect el Credir Loss Megstnren 1 Aty

Imegral in the Bank’s established policies in measuring and caleulating ECL on financial instrument
is the use of appropriate moded for cach segment of financial asset that applics relevant inpuls wd
assumptions, including forward-looking information as opproprinte,

fa) Eev hnpiis and Assrmptions o dve SCL Meode!
The key elements used in the caleulotion of ECL are as follows:

{1} PD represents an estimate of likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation
over a given lime horizon, either aver the next |2 months {1 2-month PDY) or over the
remaining lifetime (lifetime PD) of the obligation. In determining PD, the Bank performed
segmentation of its credit exposures based on homogenous characteristics. PL of
individually assessed credit exposures is determined based on the historical losses incumed
over total exposure while PD of collectively assessed eredit exposure is determined based on
the net fow rte which is developed from historical movements between one days past due
bucket 1o the next.

fil) LGD pertaing to estimate of loss related to the amount that may not be recovered after the
borrower defaults, The Bank estimates LGD parnmeters based on historical recovery rates of
claims against defaulted counterpanties, which inkes into consideration the realization of any
collateral that is integral to the financial asset.

{iii) EAD represents the gross carying amount of the exposure in the event of default which
include the amortized cost of an instrument and any accrued interest receivable. For lending
commitments, the EAD includes the amount of drvwn and undrawn imevocable loan
commitments wisder the contract, which are cstimated based on historeal observations and
forward-looking forecast,

AR R



i) Overlay of Forward-loeking fnformation
The Bank incorporates forward-looking information (FLI) in its assessment of
SICR and calculation of ECL, The Bank has performed historical analysis and has identified the
key macroeconomic varables {MEWs ) impacting credit risk associated with its borrowers.

The MEVs and their associated impact on the PD, LGD and EAD vary by financial instrument.
The impact of these MEVS on the PD, LGD, and EAD has been determined by performing
statisticnl regression analysis to understand the impact changes in these variables have had
historically on defiult rates and on the components of LGD and EAD.

The MEVs considered by the Bank includes economic data and forecasts published by
govemment bodies (e.g.. BSP ond Philippine Statistics Authority). Accordingly, the Bank has
identified key drivers for credit rigk for each portfolio. Using an analysis on historical data, the
Bank has estimated relationships between MEWYs and credit risk and credil losses

As with any cconomic forccasts, the projections and likelihoods of eccurrence are subject o a
high degree of inherent uncertainty, and therefore, the actunl outcomes may be significantly
diffierent 1o those projections. The Bank considers these forecasis to represent its best estimate of
the possible outeames,

fmpact of COVID-19 on Measurement af ECL

In response 1o the COVID-19 situation and the Bank's expectations of economic impacts, the key
conditions and assumptions utilized in the Bank's caleulation of ECL have been revisited and
recalibrated. As of December 3, 2021 and 2020, the expected impacts of COVID-19 have been
reasonably captured using the Bank®s ECL methodology (i, the ECL methodology consistently
used in the prior years) and post-mode] adjustmenis (or the management overlay)

The ECL methodology has been constructed and calibrated using historical trends and comelations as
well as forward-looking economic scenarios. Notwithstanding that the measurement inputs and
assumptions, including forward-looking macroeconomic assumgplions, were recalibrated in response
to the COVID-19 sineation, the fundamental ECL mechanics and methodology underpinning the
Bank’s measurement of ECL have remained consistent with the prior periods,

In identifying the impact of COVID- 19 pandemic to the Bank"s customers, the Bank managed its loan
portfolio based on the pereeived and expected COVID-19 impact to the customers' businesses and
mdusiries which also considers additional qualititive chamecteristics that would elevate COVID-19
changes w SICR such as differentiation of temporary liquidity necd from permanently impacted or
SICR.

Supporting the managing of the loan portfolio is the Bayanihan Para sa Kapakanan ng Kabayan
(MFD Recovery Program), primarily designed to: (1) help alleviate the difficulties faced by
borrowers affected by the community quarantine measures implemented by the government to control
the spread of the COVID-19, (2} help rebuild the businesses of clients affected by the Covid-19 crisis,
{3) incrense the collection efficiency from affected borrowers and (4) maintiin the good relationship
that the Bank developad with its clients over the years.

The Bank is reviewing and updating (e calculation of ECL model on a quartedy basis because of
COVID-19. As far as macro economic varigbles are concerned, the data are updated and recalibrated
for 2021,
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Allowence for Expected Creolit Loss

The following tables show the reconciliation of the loss allowance for ECL by class of financial
msiruments 2t of December 31, 2021 and 2020,

Liwrits and receivaiies

Decemlbser 31, 2021

Stuge I Singpe 1 Slame 3 T ozsl
Balanor at Jamuary | BI0 IR ASY WG 200 LR LLE P55.911,551
T fers:

Singe | 1o Stage 2 152,178} 51,178 - =

:‘il:ltgl.' | by Spage A |'|,1|.Hl\,t!l'!i'_|l - 1,706,258 =

Singe 2 o Stage | 127212 {127,913} - -

Stage I o Spage 3 - {16 499) 162 A% -

Stage 3o Sage | k{1 T | - {301, 153)

Stage 3w Seage 2 = 40,412 (#0532 -
Mew axscts originated 4. 136216 THE, M4 10, 282,100 15,207 260
Ml ramcasanciiadil (2602 454) 134,246 16,051, 1%6 1L574,088
Asscis dorecognized or nopaid (15297, 994) (428,127} {15, 200447) (S 26,478)
Write-niTs - = {21,919 198} 21.919,39%)

[TENTETET] 198 L1 (%,259.376) 24.064.51K)
Balance al December 31 #5307.178 1,000,501 B9 579183 PFX5B47.013
December 30, 2020 _
Siage | Smpe 2 Siage 3 Titad
Balmice ol January | (LT FTE0074 FL%75] 426 P TT041T
Tmnsfcrs:

Stage | 1o Stage 2 (660, T T 0,77

Sinpe I 1o Singe 3 i 10.5%7,222) 10537282

Stage 2 10 Sape 1 402,223 (402 E2E)

Singe 2o Stage 3 - (2.741.978) 1141976

Sape 3w Stags 1 e (TT.97%)

Mew assets origimanad 10,305, 3% T19= [RLN R e | el i) el
Mel remcasurosnienl T.M¥ 52 24370 |5 685026 35511557
Assets derecognized or repaid {4,837 X400 (119 3R (H IO i [ 3.0 030
Wirnle-alls 112 306,71 ) (12306, 716)
13,051,774 N 1% 087,333 1L 041,134
Balanoe af Eh:._'m|h|_-r 3l B0 31 kG52 ET2 200 P1E HIR BED P59 4] 551

The allowance for credit losses on loans and receivable comprises of allowance from receivables
from customers and other receivables. Receivable from customers compnises of throe koan portiolo
(1) Regular loans, (2) Micro finance loans, (3) Supervised credits. Presented below are the
reconciiations of expected credil loss allowance of receivables from customers, including
segmentation of the loan portfolio,
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Receivalles from cusiomers
Diegember 31, 2021
Stage | Htag I Stage 3 Tatal
[alamce o January | 1% 400,001 PT08. 130 PAE, TRE D0 PE5, BT 250
Transficrs
Slage 140 Stage 2 {5300} 520011 - -
Stoge | 1o Slage 3 59T = 165%,T44 -
Simge I fo Singe 0 117673 {17673 - -
Sixgpe 280 Ela-HL'_.I' - {162 499 162 4% -
Stage ) to Simpge 1 148,708 - {248, 708 -
Seape 1 bo Stage - 1,495 (40, 4%5) =
Mew asscts onlginmbed 4,014,696 TEG,545 10,200, 268 15.000,509
Nl remcasurement {1,206, H6T) 1T, 692 6659479 14,533,504
Assels derecopninsd ar e paidl 4N, 334) (37,957 (14,792 754 (A0 D, 5
Write-alls = - (21.919,304) (21,919, ¥38)
{15 20,87 1) 40608 B 307,362} 124
Halanoe al Decermber 31 LT 1A ], 049, 735 H'.'.-I-ﬂ?l]l P31 ATE ST
Decermber 11, 2020
Seage | Slage 2 Siage 3 Talal
Halance il January | PTOLE TR [ e bR PR IR0 T BFXS 5] 252
Trnsdems:
Stage | to Singe 2 [ 625 008 -
Sampe | wo Stape 3 (ABH0ETT) . HELHYT -
Stage T oo Stage 1 85T (3HA.TT1 - -
Simpe 2 o Stago 3 - (2, 732580} 2.7%2 560 -
Stage 1 bo Stage | 50091 - (59,051 ) -
Mew smsels offginaod 11,508,352 TTHIE 10,550,476 3 9533 The
MNel rencsuement 14, B T.RiG 1 506,595 14,975,273 12 100 504
Asmets denecogni zed of nepaid (4, T1547%) (11RITTH (7.159.323) (11.593,575)
Wrile-nlTs - - (12,316,716} (R 04,716
Italance at Decemnber 3 FES 401,060 FIOE ] 30 F15, Th5.063 P55 ATH 253
| — .
Remuelar Loy
__December 31, 2021
51'_'1::-: 1 !'ilnil 2 .‘-ill.g;' k1 Total
Balance ol January | P 230,95 FadLII2 F11,423,792 FIl, 154 958
Trinafers
Stage | to Stage 3 (LY 1,743 =
Stage | 1o Stage 3 (12a615) 125615 -
Stoge 2 1o Stage | 174673 {11T4T3) - =
Stage 2 1o Stage 3 - [ S A 551 s
Mew mssels originaled Ei R 670K 22,244 IR A8
Ml Femeaiunamend (5.E4193H) (1.T43) (3354 Ted) (9.201.44%)
Assets dergeognized or popasd (L0M61T) (42T, %57) {7,200, 928) 10,693, 502)
Write-olTs - = {TH,1%40) [T 1 )
Balarce ml December 31 43T 540 PO T B, 195 44 F 1694 070
e —— ' e FER R Sy

AN A v



i 1
December 31, W20
Siage | Siape 2 Smpe 3 Tisinl
Balanee al Jamiry | Pl1.215219 FT1047 P 506, 7T BT G a8
Trarslers:
Stage 1 10 Stage 2 {6215.5993) 615,998
Siape 1o Siage 3 (3,282} - FT0L 282
sings 4 e Stage | IRE.TTI (35771
Stmge 2o Stage 3 (2,732 480 2712 580
Sage 3 o Siage 1 12,733 {12, 733) ;
Wew assels onigimaied 107 AT - 5,063 |, 613370
Nt peneasu ramenl TAID 754 1,506, 305 SEMOLL 15,943 160
Ausets derecognized or repaid {6065 2) (1IETTh (3,1 36.885) (3, B5003 14
W rine-odls - - {68l (R 30y
Halance al Docember 31 Hg?ﬁl.ﬂ.‘il F_?_jI:I.EIE Pl 423 71493 P2 284957
Micrafinance
[keeember A1, T021
Srapge | Stape 1 Simpe 3 Twial
Balanore st January | F5.513.284 [ 11,5948 Ly BT 409,076
Tewnsfers
Stape | 10 Siape 3 { SO0 - S00.940 -
Simpe 3 w0 Sge 1 1379 = (1379 -
Stape 3 8o Slage 2 - TR, F ik (I8, 10 -
Mew asscts ofi ginassd (W, £ 00T L kT T.116415
et remcisaErement 01 7T, 4 (20,081} 1 AD2, 76T 1055, 146
Asinelx derecognized or repaid | 5,65, 1 Ta = (5,924, 540 i1 1&14, 711
Wnilg-alle - - {4779, 138} {4, TTR156)
Halanoe at Decernber 31 F1.867.717 FT.HIE FE 309207 T NETR S
December 31, 3020
Stape | Siage 3 Sampe 1 Tadal
Balance ar Jangary | P2500 460 [ [ T PT_EYT TH2
Tranzlers:
Stage 11 Elug: 3 {2502, 500 2802 309
Siage Yo Smge | | 5 454 {15404 £
M asects ongimicd 370,000 ) ] 12 §®0,02%
Mt remseasuremeni 2043459 55008654 HOa],113
Asicts derecopninad ar repaid {1,971 845} = L1787, 7700 (3. TILES)
Wirile-olls i, &80, 207 { B 2=0 0T
Balance ai December 31 P55 13,360 [ P11 505 nHd ] 7400 078
—
Snpervived croedi
Deceber 31, 2001
Sage | Stage 2 Stage 3 Tota
talancs @ Jansary | P 056,71 P72 FIT,-H5.582 P17, 150219
Tmnafers:
Haps | W Sapge 2 149.255) 4%, 159 - -
Siage | w0 Sapge { 1J0RE 1 R = 103X 18D -
g 2 o Mago 3 - (IT.H1H) TT.SIR .
Saxge 1o Siage 0 T4LEET - (244,527 =
Stagpe 3 00 Siape 2 - 11,588 (L -
Miew assels originaled 060,253 T4 A5 4,736,120 TAI0.59
Mel remeasuremen LETDGDS 199517 i8.601. 482 1, a8 0l
Assets dergcogmacd oF popasd (6.1 T4,548) - ['I.h..'-l-?.,'!!.'i] [THI LRI}
Write-olTs - - 17, 0l ) (17061 044}
Balance mi December 11 LET501T 074817 17549041 11499778

AN AT
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Deggmadser 1. NI 200

- Siage | Stape 2 Stage 3 Todal
Balance at Janusry | PAAI0ASD P T SEERS P10 E0 548
e Fers

Stage | o Sdage 3 15,548 ey - EORE 06

Seage 310 Suge | I0ESD {30855
Mew asscts originated 4, 32T R0 T.218 173614 E 140392
Mel pomdcisandieil 5114624 - 3. 240608 ®355212
Asnets derecognized or repaid (2138571 - {2274, 66%) (4413045
Wrile-olT= - - {5 30E 05 {5 BGH 305
Balamce st December 31 B EsE T B T7.508 B 12445 557 L A E e
e N = SN T

HTC financiad assers o Sravicial axsels af FROCT

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, all of the Bank's HTC and FYVOCI financial nssets are secuniics
classified as invesiment grade. The Bank nssessed that the impact of ECL on these securities anz not
matereal and accordingly, no ECL was recognized for HTC financial assets and financial nsscts ai
FVOCE as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,

.||.-H-EJH CORITiRETIE
Undrawn loan commitments do ned require provision for credit losses, as these are revocable
ORI il:|:|'||:.1'|lﬁ

Slgalftceanr Charges G Gross Carevime Arownt Affecting Allowance for ECL
The table below provides infarmation how the significant changes in the gross carrying amount of
financial instruments as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 contnbuted to the changes in the allowance

for ECL.

fr) Leverts anned recelvaliles
ecember X, 2021

Siage | Stage & Stage 3 Total_
Balanee ol January | P10 6T 645 [T E e T PIST7. 200,729 P268,541 638
Tmraders:
Suage | %0 Siape 2 (5.071,994) 8,071,994 - .
Stige | ho Slage 3 (ZEATE 1166 - EHAIL 16 -
Suagpe 2 o Singe § 2.0 905 2296 99 5) - =
Stage 1 40 Singe 1 PL 175,089 = {12, 1 7T5,089) -
Stage 10 Slage 2 - 576,158 {576, I5H] -
I DR E Of '.Hil';lll.'l] 2138552 RO I o 0000 3. THEOTG TABLIINETY
Assets derecogmared or ropaxd {1,900 X52T) {4 A5 (0] 680 A59  (3020,193, 037
Wrinz-od - = {21,915 198} R EATE
199,416,248 1,822 108 [GEA11,012) 131 EIT 344
Halance ai Decermber 31 I'.E.HIII.I-HH-.H'}J l‘ﬁ.i-‘ﬁ-l_.h!l'i'.i FRY, 95717 I"i’.{l'illiﬁ‘ﬂl'ﬂ'f_I
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[hecember 3, 20200
e | SEge 4 Slage 3 Tiesl
Balanss &l Janisany | P1.720.A70.24] P71.2350 064 PI12H.THLAL B S ]
Trans{ers:
Siape | %o Slapge 2 {3,187 608) 1,187 608
Sagge | f0 Biage J (SR K0 ATT) SR.EI04TT
Sempe 3 oo Siape 50,300,208 (50, 300,308
Sinpe 1 to Singe 3 (2702 T 2IETI0
Stage 3 80 Stape 1 17,013 6617115
Mgw Easels onginaied 1. 37T, TR D55 TEE DHF &7 AR50 | 445 B3 0e]
Asacty donccogmiced or popasd 11,292 6shi TR T (17,827, 5%:0% (B0 75.505)  (0.39] 249082
Wite-ofls 13 10 48T {13, 740,48 Ty
A0 B [, HH T 00 AR 4], 5498y
Halaneg @ Degeinber 11 P BOIATIES H.JI‘&‘EH PI57.506,728  PL93.541 618

Above presentation includes balances of receivables from customers and other receivables, Presented
below are the reconciliation of gross carrying amound of receivables fron customers per loan

portfolio,

Receiveies fram cusiommen

Diecember 31, 2021

Singe | Stage 2 Stage 1 Tatal
Balance al JJnu.'n'!r | Pl M AHTELS P39, 75T PA12.225, 186 1,70, 580 TEE
Tranafers:
Samge 1 90 Sioge 2 {4,930, 594) 492010y . -
Stape | 1o Stage 3 25,326,644 3 I 130, 044 -
Stage 1 40 Sage 1 LITA91E (21 TER]5) - -
Sampe 3w Suape 1 595601 - (0295601 ) -
Singe 1 0 Singe 2 - Sl 02 (R 042
Mew pasds anpinalcd L IARGR0.103 I.640.000 J2.619,576 L, 168, 92006T
Azsets derecogmired or repad (1LTELIT.68T) (4,19 506) (B65 20T (LETLOVEEIG)
Wine-olFe - - (1,909, 39H) EE1, 010 3%ER
230,973,850 1674509 [57.606,01H8) ITSAILTTI
Balance ai Decemiber 30 #1,%61,661,7 5 G R G P24, 597,158 TAO21003810
December 31, 3030
Slags | Grig: 1 Sappe 1 Taitul
Balance al Jarsaary | Pl G3E. 794 62 | P72 PO AMHI | Fl.H0e 06,075
Transfers:
Stape 1 15 Stage 2 {3,187, 60E) 1187604 - -
HI.‘lgr 1 i :‘E:IHHI: 3 4090, 208} - 40,205,265
Stapge I o Slage | 50, 300.208 (50,300, 204 ) = &
Slape I b Slage 5 - (2.0 10) el (] 1] -
Singe ¥ 1o Stage | Y0728 - {3.107,235) -
Peew asscls oF) grinated LATT. T AR TS5, (Wl S5 IRS 405 | 436 51K 451
Azl derecagnized or repaid {1,395 219.434) {17294 6563 (TLAIRIZE (1484, 033.413)
Wiile-alls - - {02 T40,45TH [
I8, | 6 MG |, 154, Dais b I4. 525,355 (5R15417]
Halance s December 31 PLGSDAAT EIS F1 969 75T PII2 23 DRG P 1 746 5B, 758

AMEHARATT GRS e
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Regular loans
Decomber 30, D021
Stape | Slape 1 Stape 3 Teinl
Bialure @ Janusy | FlA10. 75161 F1H15.%64 FIRH63 03T PL4SAITIE
TransFors
Stage | oo Suage 2 (4,3 10.55H) 4,510,858 - -
St | 1o Stage 3 (9,500 9 X6 - 9.502,914 -
age 2 m g | 2L ITERIS 341 76 FUR) - -
Beagss 3 1o Sage | 409,75 - (4,028, 751§ -
Mew assets originaied 1 ATEAIL A0S 130y a0 2,070,800 1 ARLTAIANE
Asgds derecognized of repand {1,238 842029 (240, 0 (ML (13T 6.505)
Write=olTs a {79, 1%6 70196
Pialeme m December 31 P42 B8 G FILHIR S P& 1034% PLAGY TREIE]
Dieember 11, 20500
!-ig:n.' | :';L'EI.' 2 IEul_.JgL 3 T'-"‘l!.,.
[alsnee m January | P1.270.54]1 248 PT0 324,723 Bl 45, 105 L300 TRL2TI
Transfers
Stage | 8o Singe 2 [ IET S08) 5 IX7 608
Staee | W0 Sape 3 (20657392 65792
Stage 2 b0 Singe | & N0, 108 {50, 300 IR §
Suagn= 2 w0 Simpe 3 (2702710 3 TR TI
Seage 3 o Saape | 26RO (M7 [ 2AH0 R
MWow reeols origingied I A3, 124 0 MY 4 RS way 944, 133072
Msscts derecognized or ropaid (ISR D) (17,203,449 (A5 110, 7I9) |EET IRT 2I4)
Write-od5 (G514 T (55 35T
HBalsnee @ Deccinber 11 Bl A10. 751623 L ot ] P A& 1T PEA%4 4300714
Wicrnfinance
Deceanber 10, 2021
Slage | S 2 Stage 3 Twial
Balanae m January | FILT. 301633 - FI3, 993007 Flal A5 E40
Transiers:
Stape | b0 Slage 3 {30135 - 3,352 -
Zampe 3o Siage 1 17,794 {17, T -
Stape 3o Stage 2 - 410 (42.000) =
Wew nusss origisaied 9,071,008 B1,004 18 Ti6 000 416868 000
Asits derccogredd ar mepasd {HER,146,741) (B EDH]) (27 528,570 [R5, T4 0
Wrile-olfs = = (4, TT9.158) (4. 775, 158)
Halmnce ai December 31 FI44,321,911 P14, 302 P13, 31517 F157. 70,152
Dieeember 31, 2000
Sippe 1 Siape T a1 _ Tixal
Balance at Jamary | PG 4343032 [ B23.002 281 P2 I4 526,485
Trapslers:
Simge | 1o Siage 3 {4 R58. 771} - 4 Z50.7T1
Slage 3 1o Stage | 135 8X1 (235 H2L) -
Peégww assitd o giesngd TUH. 3T AN - 24 B, (HH) AZ4 1T AHHD
Asads derecopnized or repaid [ 367,79 619 - (22 754, 1 B9 { A0LOE S, B
Wirite-ollz {1 2003 T h {1, 249057}
Halanee at Decesnber 31 FlI17 391523 P 3 D0 (4T IE R R
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Supervized creits
[reecmher 31, 2021
Saas | Siape 2 Siage 3 Toial
[alance o January | PIDL. 544,550 F153.T93 FER, I6T.05T FI5], 05404
Trmnsfors
Stape | to Sage 2 (&0R.540) 05540 - -
Stage 1 1o Stage ¥ {1 LEI0LE56) - 1 2.810.356: -
Stage 1 o Stage | 15550558 = (2, 585,055) =
Simpe Yo Siage 2 = Ll T (53T 942) -
Miew asscls angialod A5TNI5,665 I 45060 10,843,576 170.309,241
Assan denteogmmasd of fejesl ll‘.r-l..]"ﬂﬂ'.'“..‘t-_l [OALET2) (2. 740,797y (E03.89T 584
Wirkle=olls - - [17,060,044) (17, 860044)
Halance ot Decenher 11 PIT4 514 468 BE 771,403 FEA, 140,146 FInd436017
[Decomber 31, 2004
Siape | Smgy 1 Stage 1 Tirtal
Balandé al Jamsiry | P67 IPRITE P- P245.110,242 P2 a7
Translers:
wiage 1 1o Slage ] (LA NEE, 103} 15 388, 103
Stage X o Siage 1 191 336 L1901, 3264
Mew nusets orgisaned 180, 787 530 155,000 27 568 530 | s ] 2 80
Assets derecogniped ar nepaid {194,445, 7T0) {1,207} (14,215,403 [ 204,650, SR
Wile-ailz {5390, (M) {5, 1 00 )
Halanoe 3t Decermnber 31 PI0Z. 544 559 [ Bk 5] et R (e FLELOGS A

il HTC fimancial wovels and Sranciol accetys o FPOC!

As ol December 31, 2021 and 2020, all of the Bank's HTC and FVOCT linancial assets are securities
classificd as investment grade and accordingly are under Stage 1. There were no significant
movement 10 the Bank's HTC Nnancial sssets and financial assets at FYOC] during the year that
affected the allowance for ECL (see Moie 9).

Coflateral

Cuality of collateral is one of the considerations in granting of loan as this is an alternative way of
collecting from the borrower in case of defauli, Collateral is valued according 1o existing credit

policics, with the appraisal repont as basis of the computed lean value.

As part of the Bank's risk control, a central unit is charged to handle collateral documentation
wherein standard documents are used. Amy deviation from these pro-foma decuments are subject 1o
Executive Credit Commities's approval prior 1o use and acceplance

The table below provides the collateral profile of the outstanding loan portfiio (receivables Trom
customers) of the Bank as of December 31, 2021 and 2020.

2021 2020
Dareciors, officers, stockholders and related interesis
{DOSERD) loans
Secured - Mon-risk neets PX68.57R RI00.000
Unsecured - 71.711
268,578 371711
{ Forwand)
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2021 2020

MNon-DO5R1 loans

Securad:

Feal estate mortgage 1.324.233,921 1,164 048,948
Mon-risk assets 15,096,414 26,137,639
Others Bo.666,328 109,267,108
1445, 9N, 66 1.300,053,695
Unsecured ZTS.038.247 ddh 455 352

FI.021.903.529 P1.746.880,758

Mom-nisk asscis are securities covered by back-to-back on deposis. Others on the non-DOSKD koans
includes chatte] mortgages,

The estimated fair value of collateral and other security enhancements held against the boan portfolio
as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are presented below:

Decem i1, 2

El.-utl‘: ] .'il!uiu 2 Hug-r 1 Tatal
Rieal propemies P A0HE AP0, 300 P11,568,928 PR, 777428 P 659,100,662
Chateel 118802, 790 G, DM 56,576,667 I TE, 059,457
Hokd-out depuosais 40,038,365 - 1,195,770 40,234,135
(ahers 31,139,251 - 4. 376,944 35,506,109
P4 TPEHG0. 714 P11.24%.925 B100. 926 KT Faa, 01 2 06 450

December 31, 2020
Stape | Sinee 2 Stape 3 Tatal
Rl propertics 3,721,253, 00 P4, |34 560 PO 3] 620 P R3I1. 720220
Charel 212,095,793 G50,04000 BR A0 66T 2R1.54°7 A
Hold-eut deposits 32122993 3,422,102 35.545.095
Others |66 24,2055 3. 3EL 340 20 008612
3 AE2 6%, 08 B4, TS, 500 PI71.047. 728 P4, I TR0, 157

The Bank normally grants loans to borrowers at a rate ranging between 60% 1o 80% of the latest
appraized value of the borrowers” collateral. Others include outstanding balance guaranteed by
Agnculiural Guorantee Fund Pool.

The Bank’s manner of dispasing the collmeral for impaired loans and receivables is normally through
sale of the assets after foreclosure proceedings are taken place,

Modiffcalion of Financial Asseis

In certain cases, the Bank modifies the terms of the loans provided o the bormowers due o
commercial renegotiations, or for distressed loans, with a view of maximizing recovery of the
contractual amount of obligation that the Bank is owed 0. Restructuring policies and practices are
based on indicators or criteria which, in the management™s judgment, indicate that payment will most
likely continue. Such policies are continuously reviewed and updated as necessary.

The nsk of defaull of such assets after modification is assessed at the reporting date ans compared
with the risk under the original terms al initial recognition, when the modification is nol substantial
and 50 docs not result in derecognifion of the onginal ssset. The Bank monitors the performance of
the [inancial asset subsequent to its modification.
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The Bank may determine that the credit fisk has significantly improved afier restructuring (in
secordance with the new terms for six consecutive months or more), so that the assets are moved
from Stage 3 or Sage 2,

Wrire-eils of Financlal Azseis

The Bank writes ofT financial nssets, in whole or in part, when it las exhausted all practical recovery
efforts and has concluded that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery of the financial asset.
Indscators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery inclede; cessation of enforcement
activity: and, where the Bank's recovery method is through foreclosure of collateral and the value of
the collateral is less than the outstanding contractual amounts of the financial assels to be wrilien-off,

i her Fu_,l'i'.lrm:.r.l'fn;.lu o Credit Risk

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible, since the counterparties are
repulable banks with high quality external credit ratings. Included in cash and cash equivalems ang
cazh in banks and shom-term investments which arc insured by the Philippine Deposit Insurance
Corporation up to 3 maximum coverage of POS million for every depositer per banking institution.

Ligucialiny Rizk

Liquidity risk is the risk that funds available may not be adequate to meet the credit demands of the
Bank's customers and repay deposits on maturity. The Bank manages liquidity risk by holding
sufTicient ligquid assets of appropriste quality fo ensure shon-term funding requirements are mel and
by maintaining a loan portfolio with cvenly-spaced mamritics and cosh flows. In addition, the Bank
secks to maintain sufficicnt liquidity to take advantage of imerest rg opporunities when they arise.

The main responsibility of daily asset liability managemend lies with the Treasury Unit, Liguidity rsk
management is menitored through Asset-Liability Management Committee. The Bank's principal
source of liquidity is compriscd of cash and other cash stems, due from BSP and due from other
banks.

Analvsiz of maturity profile of the financial assets and financial liobilities of the Bank are shown
bsebow,

Diigmber M, f351
[Fat T JmaX N Nloamibiv Merr 1ham
IO ] S il ji | Yo | Viar Toiml
Riwharogs
Cieh il wribect s e FST.RRETTR F- - - FS1.585.7T0
Lhasy Srcaemy MR UL R . - IR0 AR%
Paap Proam oiiw bk [4E, 4L LT ] 48 LEE FLER ]
Firnsrc sll st s F 000 M 15.5E5.1 18 1a,Lid A28 117, 204, 0 IELELLE S
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Ligedaity Coverage Ratio

Un March 10, 2016, the BSP issued Circular No. 905, Implenentarion of Basel T Framewerk

e Liguicity Standurels - Lignidity Coverage Ratio and Disclosure Stawdards, which provides the
implementing guidelines on liquidity coverage ratio (LCR) and disclosure standards that are
consistent with the Basel 11l framework. The LCR is the ratio of high-quality liquid assets 1o total pet
cash outflows, which should not be lower than 100.00%. Compliance with the LCR minimum
requirement commenced on Janoary 1, 2020

To promote the short-term resilicnce of the liquidity risk profile, the Bank maintains adequate stock
of unencumbered high-quality lquid assets (HQLAs) that consists of cash or assets that can be
converted into cash ar litthe or mo loss of value in privaie markets, o meet its liquidity necds under
slressed conditions. The stock of liquid assets should enable the Bank to withsiand significant
liquidity shocks for at least 30 calendar days, which would give time for corrective actions to be taken
by the Bank management and'or the BSP,

Details of the Bank’s LCR ax of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are summarized below,

2021 M
Total sioeck of HOLA BTT4. 585924 e 638 4809
Expected Net Cash Outflows 186,619,156 73,588, 600
Liguidity Coverage Ratio 415.06% I,317.65%

Net Sreeble Fundtog Ratio

To promote long-term resilicnes of the bank against liguidity risk, the bank maintain a stable funding
profile in relation to the composition of its assets and off-balance sheet activilies.

MSFR secks to limit the overreliance on sheri-term wholesale funding and promaoting enhanced
assessment of funding risk across all on- and off-balance sheet accounts. [t complements the
Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR), which promotes short term resilience of a bank"s/\QB"s liquidity
profile. The NSFR applies to all universal and commercial banks (UBs/K Bs) and their subsidiary
banks and OBz on both solo and conzolidated bases,
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Details of the Bank's NSFR a5 of December 31, 2021 are summarized below {amounis in thousands):

2021 2020
Available Stable Funding P3,006,559 P3,043.434
Required Siable Funding 1,958,312 |, 747,743
Net Stable Funding Ratio 154% 174%

Bazel [If Leverape Ratfo (BLR)

BSP Circular Nos. 881 and 990 cover the implementing guidelines on the BLR framework designed
to acl a5 o supplementary measure to the risk-based capital requirements and shall not be less than
5.00r%

The detnils of the BLE as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are o= follows {newnis in thoususds):

2021 2020
Tier 1 Capital® P48E,312 PA%E.657
Exposurc Measure* IATLO9R 13TH M6
BLR 14.48% 14.76%

& T gty are Bl an Sy gosiied’ bulovces, oo lgrefory, wore dod e oo il iy avmosnnn previowdy reponiead i by BSI7

Under the frumework, BLR is defined as the capital measure divided by the exposure measure,
Capital measure is Tier | capital, Exposure measure is the sum of on-balance sheet exposures,
denvative exposunes, xm:uri!:,' |'|.|1:||||;i|||:|: exposures and off-balance sheet ilems.

Anti- Mo Lanndering Comrvols

The Anti-Money Laundering Act (AMLA) or Republic Act (RA) Mo, 9160 was passed in Scptember
2001 and was amended by RA No. 9194, RA Mo, 10167, and RA Ne. 10365 in March 2003, June
2012 and February 2013, respectively. Under the AMLA, as amended, the Bank is required 10 submit
“Covered Transaction Repons™ to the Amti-Money Laundering Council {AMLC) involving single
iransactions in cash or other equivalent monetary mstruments in excess of PO million within one
banking day. The Bank i also required to submit “*Suspicious Transaction Reports™ to the AMLC in
the evemt that circumsiances exist and there are reasonable grounds o believe that the transaction is
suspicious. Furthermore, terronist financing was criminalized in RA No. 10168

In addition, the AMLA requires that the Bank safekeeps, s long as the account exists, all the Know
Your Customer (KYC) documents involving its elients, including documents that establish and record
the true and full identity of its cliens.  Likewise, ransactional documents must be maintained and
stored for five years from the date of the transaction. In cases involving closed accounts, the KYC
doeu ments must be kept for five years after their closure. Meanwhile, all records of accounts with
court cases must be safe kept until there is a final resolution.

On January 27, 2001, BEP Circular No, 706, Lipduted Anii-Money Loawrdering Rudes ancd Reglefions
(the Circular), was implermented superseding all policics on AMLA. The Cincular requires the Bank
to adopt a comprehensive and risk-based Moncy Laundering and Terrorist Financing Prevention
Program {MLPF) designed according 1o the covered institution’s corporate structure and risk profile.
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The Compliance Unit of the Bank, headed by the CCO, monitors the Bank's compliance on the
implementation and management of MLPP, The Branch Operations Head is the compliance officer m
the branch level, that oversees the daily activities of the branch, The CCO regularly reports 1o the
Corporste Governance Committée and to the BOD the results of their monitoring of AMLA
compliance,

In an effort o further prevent maoney laundenng activitics, the Bank strengthens its EYC policies and
puidelimes. New individunl customers shall establish their true and full identity, and shall mainiaim an
account only in the true and full name of the account owner, Likewise, the Bank is requined to risk
profile its clients to Low, Normal or High with its comesponding due diligence of Reduced, Average
or Enhanced, in complinnce with the nsk-based approach mandated by the Circular. Pelitically-
Exposed Persons are automatically profiled as high rsk smd subject 1o enhanced due diligence. Any
5|,|:.pir.::-|,1|,1:-. transachion 1% 'rl,.']H:-rl-l,:lJ i the Bank®s AML Commitiee, who in'l.'-.'-sﬁg:lh:}: and delibemies
wheiher the transaction has a valid ground 1o be reporied as Suspicious Transacton Bepaort,

Oifsetting of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Certain financinl nesets and fnancial labilites of the Bank with amounts presented in the statements
of financial position as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are subject to offseiting, enforceable master
netiing amongements ond similar agreements,  However, there were no financial asscis presented at
nel in the statemenis of Meancial position,

Presented below are the financial assets subject 1w offsoiing i the event of defoult but the related
amounis are not set-ofl in the sintements of financinl position
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For purposes of presenting the information, the related amounts nod set-off in the statements of
financial position pertain to!

fa) Hold-out deposits which serve as the Bank's collaternl enhancement for cenain loans and
receivables, and,

fi) Securitics purchased winder resale agrocments (SPURA) pertain (o overnight placements with the
BSP, where the undedying securitics cannot be sold or repledged.  The Bank 15 not pennitied (o
sell or repledge the securities in the absence of default by the owner of the collateral.

Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure

Fair Faluwe Hierarciy

It aecordance with PFRS 13, Fair Palve Measwremeny, the fair value of financial asscis and liabilities
and won-linancial assels which are measwred at fair value on a recurning or non-recurring basis and
those assets and liabilities not measured a1 fair valwe bt for which fair value is disclosed in
accordance with other relevant PFRS, are categorized into three levels based on the significance of
inpuis used to measure the fair value, The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

o Level 1! quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilitnes that an
|!|I.|i|':.I cidt @eceds ot the MiEasureiment 1!:1[|.';

e Level 2 in|‘_||.|l5 ol her than |;|1|.-|,:-|1.:|.1 pri-'.:l.'s included within Level | that ane observable for the asset
or linbility, either directly {i.e., as prices) or indirectly {1.e.. denved from prices); and,

& Level 3: inputs for the assel or liability that ore not based on observable market duoto
[unobservable inputs)

The level within which the assetor hability is classified is determined based on the lowest level of
significant imput to the fair value measurement.

For purposes of detenmining the market value at Level |, & market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, indusiry growp, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regulary ocourming market
transactions on an arm’s length basis,

Foer investments which do not have quoted morket price, the fair value 15 determined by using
generally acceptable pricing models and valuation technigques or by reference o the current market of
anciher instrument which is substantially the same after taking into sccount the reloted credit nisk of
counterparties, or is calculated based on the expected cash Nows of the underlying net asset base of
thi instrumsent.

When the Bank uses valuation techaigque, i maximizes the use of observable market data where i is
available and relies as linle as possible on entity specific estimates. 11 all significant inpuls requined
io determine the fair value of an instrement are observable, the instrument 15 included in Level 2.
Diherwize, it 15 incheded in Level 3,
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Fare Felie Dixefosnires lfér.l' Fingmacind Tnstrigmens

The table below shows the camying values and fair value hierarchy of the Bank's financial aase1s
measwred in the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2021 and 2020

(amounis in thousands).

Bewember 31, 2021
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The methods and assumptions used by the Bank in estimating the fair value of the financial
instruments are as follows. There were no changes in Level 2 and Level 3 instraments in both years:

Cershi amd oher ¢l fems, e from B3P amd other baks, deposiv iabiliries amd other labilithes
The carrying amois approximate Fair values due o 1the shori-term nature of these accounis,

Firgnoam axset af FVOCT

fal Fair values of peso-denominated government dela securities issued by the Philippine government
are determined based on the reference price per Bloomberg which uses BY AL, These BVAL
reference rates are computed based on the weighted price derived using an approach based on a
combined sequence of propriciary BV AL algorithma of direct observations or observed
comparshle

i For ciher quoted debt secunties under Leved 1. fair value 15 determined to be the curment bid price
per Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp

Levans gl receivables

Loans and receivables are net of provisions for credit lesses, The estimated fair value of Toans and
receivables represents the discounted amount of estimated future cash fMlows expected o be received.
Expected cash flows are discounted at current market mates to determine fivir value,

HTC Fingncial Agzers

Thise fmancial assets consist of government ond corporate bonds, The fair value of these Ninancial
pssets is determined by the direct refierence to published price quoted in an active market as of
reporting date.



Fair Value Megsurement for Non-finaneiol Assets
Thie table below shows the Levels within the fair value hierarchy of non-financial assets for which
fair value is disclosed as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,

Deccamber 3. PRR 1
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The fadr valee of the Bank's land, buildings and cquipment classified under Investment Propettics
(see Note 12) are determined on the basis of the appraisals performed by an independent and internal
appraiser with appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of similar propertics
in the relevant locations. To some extent, the valuation process was conducted by the apprsiser in
discussion with the Bank's management with respect to the determination of the inputs such as the
size, age, and condition of the land, buildings and equipment, and the comparable prices in the
corresponding property location. In estimating the fair value of these propertics, management takes
into aceount the market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the assets in their
highest and besi use. The fair values discussed in the preceding page, as determined by the
appraisers, were used by the Bank in determining the fair value of investment properties.

The Fair value of these non-financial sssets was detennined based on the following approaches:
fa) Fair Valwe Measwrenmens of Led

The Level 3 fair value of land was derived using the market comparable approach that reflects the
recent transaction prices for similar properties in nearby locations adjusted for differences in key
attributes such as property size, zoning, and accessibility. The most significant input into this
valuation approach is the price per square fool, hence, the higher the price per square fsot, the
higher the fair value.

fhl Fair Value Measurement of Bulldings and legprovenrenis

The Level 3 fair value of the buildings and equipment, on the other hand, was determined using
the cost approach that reflects the cost to a market participant lo consiruct an asset of comparable
usage, construction standands, design and layout, adjusted for obsolescence, The more significant
inputs used in the valuation include direet and indirect cosis of construction such s but not
limited to, labor and contractor's profit, materials and equipment, surveying and permit costs,
electricity and utility cosis, architectural and engineering fees, insurnnce and legal fees. These
inputs were derived from various suppliers and contractor's quotes, price catalogues, and
construction price indices. Under this approsch, higher estimated costs used in the valuation will
result in higher fair value of the propertics.

There has been no change to the valuation techniques used by the Bank during the year for its

non-financial assets, Alss, there were no transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value hicrarchy for
the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,
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7. Cash and Due from Bangko Scentral Ng Pilipinas

This account is composed of the fellowing:

021 2020

Cash and other cash items B57.505.770 P68, 207 826
D from B5P:

Mandatory resceves (MNole 15§ 11,456,724 10,140,674

Non-mandatory reserves 190,212,765 364 000, 000

223,669, 489 174,140,574
P281,175.250 P42, 34K 500

Cash consists primarily of funds in the form of Philippine currency notes and coins in the Bank's
vault and those in the possession of tellers. Other cash items include cash items {other than currency
andd coins on hand) such as checks drawn on other banks or thot were received alter the Bank's
elearing cut-ofT time until the close of the regular banking hours

Mandatory reserves represent the balance of the deposit secount maintained with the BSP to meet
PESEIVE requinremens.

Interest income camed in 2021 and 2020 amounted to P6.8 million and P9.8 million, respectively,

which are presented as part of Interest Income on Due Fom BSP and Other Banks in the statements of
meonme,

B Duwe from Other Banks

The breakdown of due from other banks by cumency follows:

2021 2020
Philippine pesos F238. 881,230 P44 A80.527
Lrnited Seates dollars GH. 581 A6, 070

F238. 949 811 F440), TG 39T

Due from other banks includes regular and time deposits with local banks. Annual interest rates on
these deposits ranges from 0.0% to 3.0% both for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,
There are deposits such as current accounts, which do not cam interest, Total interest income eamed
amounted to F2.4 million, and B39 million in 2021 and 2020, respectively, and 15 presented as part
of Interest Income on Due from B3P and Other Banks in the statements of income.

For statement of cash flows purposes, time deposits amounting 1o #44.0 million and F69.0 million as

of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, are not included as cash ond cash equivalems sinoe
these have maturities of more than three months.

A A




O, Investment Sceuritics

Financial Assets af Fair Vafne Through Other Conprefensive Income
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income as of December 31, 2021 and 2020
consist of the following quoted debt sccurities:

2021 2020
Corporate notes and bonds Fos 248621 P120.50%, 142
Crovemment bomds 50,306,425 51,708, 505

Pi45.555,046 PIBIZ1T.647

The Bank incurred fair value losses amounting 1o PS.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2021
and fair value gains of P5.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 on its financial assets at
FVOCT, which arc recognized in other comprehensive income and presented in the statements of
comprehensive income under items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.

The maturity profile of this account is presented below

2021 2020
Within ong year F36,349,743 P, T84, 826
Between one year and five years 109,205,303 103 412 357
Hevond five venrs - 21,020,464

P145,555, 041 RI181,217.647

Intcrest income generated from financial assets at FVOCH in 2021 and 2020 amounted to 7.6 million
and PR.1 million, respectively, and is shown as pant of Interest Income on Investment Securities in the
statements of incoane. Average interest rates on these invesimenis for the years ended Decerber 31,
2021 and 2020 is equivalent e 4.4%,

Changes in the Bank’s holdings of financial assets at FVOCH are summarized below.

020 Rl
Balance at beginning of year PIRI 217,647 FI172.977,086
Fair valuee gain {loss) {(5062,601) B, 240,561
Marturities A 30 R0 (WY

145,555,046 ol b1 P

The Bank's financial assets at FVOCI, which are subject 1o credit risk exposure (sec Mote 4), have
been reviewed for impairment. Based on such review, the management determines that the related
expected credit losses are immaterial to the financial satements. Accordingly, the Bank did not

recognize any impairment losses on these financinl assets for vears ended December 31, 2021 and
2020,

D YT
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Fimaneial Assets af Amortized Cos
Financial assers at amortized cost consist of
2021 200
Uovemment bongds F285 391 478 R215911.871
Comorite bonds LRI i, LD 0N

F375,391 478 R255.911,.87]

The mawrity profile of this aceount is presented below.

2021 2020

Within one year - PO0.000, (00
Between one years and five yvears 75,500,044 125,050,000
Bevand five years 100, 00, MW S0, 000, (0
ATEE00.0040 255 050, D00

Unamosized premivm/{discount) (108,522} 861,871

F375301,478 P255.911.871

[nterest income generated from HTC financial assets for the vears ended December 31, 2021 and
2020 amounted to #12.2 million and B8.T million respectively, and is shown as part of Interest
Income on Investment Securities in the statements of income,  Average interest rate on these

investments assets for the vears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 is equivalent to 4, 1% and 4.9%,
respectively,

Changes in the Bank's holdings of HTC financial asses are summarized below

221 202

Halance at beginning of year BZS5,050,000 B135,000,000
Additions 200,450,000 170,050 (s
Maturitics [ SHL, (hN D (W) { 50 (880, (WO
75,500,000 255,050,060

Unamortized premium{discount) {108,522 BG1,87]

BX75.391.478 B255.911.87]

The Bank’s HTC financial assets, which are subject to credit risk exposure (see Mote 4), have been
reviewed for impairment. Based on such review, the management determines that the related
expected credit losses are not material to the financial statements. Accordingly, the Bank did not

recognize any impainment losses on these financial assets for the vears ended December 31, 2021 and
200,
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1L Lonns and Other Receivaliles
This account consists of the following:
2021 2020
Receivables from CUSIOMmGTS;
Lovans and discounts FLOAS TI4.648 P 758,051 600
Unearmed discount (13,810,119} {11.070,848)
2 E] 03530 |, Td6 BRO TSR
Other receivables:
Sales comract receivable (SCRY 46,616,910 49 504 964
SPURREA - 127,332,184
Accrued interest receivable D6 338 HiH X6, 76T H32
Arcounts receivable 1509710 30546, 104

T4A65454 216,660,880

2096 368,953 1963541 638

Allowance for impnirment (15,847,023} (59.911,551)
RILOG0521.960 B O0D3A30,0KT

Imberest mtes on receivables from customers rigee from 8.% o 61.0% assets in 2021 and 2020,
[mterest rates on SCR range from 8.0% to 12% for the same aforementioned covered period,
respectively, All receivables from customers have fixed interest rate and all other receivables e
noninterest bearing, unsecured and ane gencrally pavable on demang,

Total imterest income camed from loans and other receivables amounted to #273.8 million and
#2E5.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and are presented as
Interest [ncome on Loans and Other Recervables in the statements of income.,

Manurity Profile of Recenables frowm Chstomers
The maturity profile of the Bank's receivables from customers, gross of allowance for impairment

boss, folkows:
02 20210
Within one yvear P512.313.268 P524,155510
Beyond one year but within five years 192,376,631 779,959,549
Bevond hive vears 1LI17.213,630 442,765,699

P2.021.903,519  P1.746,880,758
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Receivables from customers (before allowance of impairment losses) have
Category ol loans:

the fiollowing types and

2021 200
Current loans:

Agra and other agri credits P3G6,072,943 BT 10502, 3590
Small and medium enlerprises BIT. 030,191 200 186, 5910
Private corporations 216,241,976 231,938,767
Microcnterprise loans 231,034,935 B4, 107,992
Individuals for housing purposes 340,880,230 152,774, 768
Individuals for consumption purposes 74,216,573 (2,944,222
Individuals fior sther pumposes 4,275,855 7,933,085

1. %61, 661,704

16MLGRT.ELS

Past due loons:

Apra and other d._gli cradils H,I‘:H-,'u'.]g 17,792 120
Small and medium enberprises 15,600 830 48,468,971
Micreenterprise koans 12,762,027 36,127,473
Individuals for heusing purposes 1,757,660 10,748,828
Individuals for consumpticn parposcs 5,505,956 1055551
Individuals for cther purposes 51613
0,241 815 I 16,192 943
B2.021.903,529 B 746,880,758
The maturity profile of the Bank's SCR from customers, gross of allowanee for impairment loss,
Foflows:
2ozl oz
Within one vear B4 001,667 PO 373,266
Beyond one year but within five years 1825 380 0,508,042
Beyond five vears 18,699,559 M1,623,653
B46,061 6,934 40 504, %61

Refer 1o Mote 4 for the reconciliation of allowanes for impairmicnt for the years ended December 11,

2021 and 2020,

The Bank recovered certain loons snd receivables previowsly written-oft. Such recoveries amounted
1o B 6 million and B1_5 mullion in 200 | amwd 2020, Nh|1l.'|..:|i". ely, and are '|'.ITI.':H..¢I'II¢I.| 1% pet of I’!-TI_1'-'|5iiH.1
for impatrment losses under “Provision for credit and impairment losses” in the sistements of income,
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11. Bank Premises, Furniture, Fistures and Equipment

The gross camrying amounts and accumulated depreciation and amortization of bank premises,
furmiture, fixtures and equipment at the beginning and end of the vears ended December 31, 2021 and

2020 are shown below,
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Reconciliations of the carrying amounts o the beginning and end of the years ended December,
2021 and 2020 are shown below,
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As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Boank wrote-ofl certain fumiture, fixtures and equipment with
an aggregate book value of P0.05 million and FO.01 million, respectively. Losses from such write-off
are mcluded as part of Others under Other Operating Expenses account in the statements of income

(see Mote 18).



< 4R -

As of December 31, 2021 certain ransporiation equipment under car plan matured. The Bank's gain
on sale of non-financial asset amounted 1o BO.01 million and P05 million for the vears ended
Drecember 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and presented as part of Gain on sale of non-financial
assets under Other Operating Livcome in the statements of income (see Note 18),

Depreciation and amortization on bank premises, fumiture, fixtures ond equipment are presented os
part of Depreciation and amartization widder Other Operating Expenses in the statements of incom:
(sze Mote [5).

The gross carrying amount of fully depreciated bank premises, fumiture, fixtures and cquipment that
are still in use as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted o0 #170.2 million and #178.1 million,
respectively.

Thiz BSP requires that investment in bank premises, fumiture, fixtires and equipmient does not excoed
50 of the Bank s unimpaired capital, As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Bonk: has
satisfactonly complied with this requircment

12,

Investment Proportics

The gross camying amounts and accumulated depreciation and mpaiment of investment propertics
as of December 31, 2021 and at the beginning and end of 2020 pre shown below

BDeweinlier 11, 2021
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Reconcilinbions of the canrving amounis of mivestment properties are shown below

Hiildisg sl
iami Imprayemesds THhems Tatal

Balance st lanuary 1. 2021,

el stvemulaled deprocinian

&Il ST FalA0%711 [JEMR AL BT [ ARETH L FIoA L
A s ALTeD9IF A A 2D Sl 117 ELLREL ]
[limpeaats {1R2K3ATE) 11, 589,347) {EALE,17) {ETADROER)
Depro intash fod the vear - [2.098. 54 K) {L199.X24) [LELLE SFF]
Halsnee o December 31, 121

netof acommilaied

deprociaton mnd imeaimem FIS AT I5E P15, 143,339 FI.TihA%2 i, T 96
e ed L c R e - ol e




- 44 -
i bl angd
[T Emprosamiciik {hhers Tonal
Halance st January |, 2071,
el Bccamuliied depeocialion
anil Enpainscal PG 2 A Pl E19.213 [ PEE,IAZ, 0]
A dddiens 19504 695 QT2 ETH 5350.34% 3927 506
Dinposabs 25,8041 543 {HLE20610) {EEAZIL T
Impainment leas: for the yeomr (3,730 13,710
Depres|stion for the vear (L1431 {1 A%6307) {4, 00R O8R4
Balinee s Digcomber 11, 2000
net ol accwnulaicd
dmlnﬂllll".’l il ST Pl 309,711 Pld 218400 [ AR EIgAL2380
—— el

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, foreclosed investment properics still subject to redemption
pericd by the borrowers amounted to B9 million and #21.7 million, respectively.

Depreciation on investment properties is presemed as part of Depreciation
Other Operating Expenses in the statements of income (see Mote 1R).

and amorizaticn under

Fair value of the Banks investment properties as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted to

B209.2 million, BERES milleon, respectively (see Mobe 6],

[ 2021 and 20000, recognized gains on sale of imvestment propenics amounted o #1010 million and
P35.3 mllion, respectively, and are presented as pant of Gain on sale of non-financial assets under
Cheer Operating Income in the statements of incomee (see Mote 18). Beal property taxes and other

litigation expenses related 1o these investment properties paid by the Bank

and recognized as expense

amownted v W1 million for both 2021 and 2020, and ane presented as pant of Litigation under Other

Opemting Expenscs in the siptements of income (see Nobe 18,

Asg of December 31, 2021 and 2020, there is no restriction on the realizabil
properties or the remittance of income and proceeds of disposal therefrom.

ity of mvestient
In addition, the Bank has

ol entered into a significant commitment 1o purchase, construct or develop any invesinenl propery

in the near future.

. Dher Resources

This acoount consists of the following:

2021 2020

Deferred tax assets - net (Mote 200 BIO0ATALT BI4.63K.355]
Prepaid expenses R0 BEl 356
Compuler software = nel 26001613 1,600,368
Office supplies 1280099 2,198,785
Architectural design - niet 2042 AbND 4, 284,
Electronic wallet 1,504,132 400,483
Retirement benefit plan psset (Mote 19) 1,092 487 =
Refundable deposits 647,281 G0, TH]
Miscellaneous S 232018 3,637,012
P39, 341,745 P36, 182,136

In 2021, management reassessed the probability of future economic benelit ansing from the cost
related to architeciural design in view of the Bank's updated plan for constructing a new executive
building, and considering the plan of merger with other two banks within the UBP Group.



- 50 -

Management provided an allowance amounting to 2.1 million in 2021, included under *Provision for
credit and impairment losses” i the statement of income.

Miscellancous assets include decumentary stamps, electronic fund wallet and postage stamps,

Breakdown of other resources o= to liguidity is shown below

220 2020
Curreni PI13468.3348 P15,658 438
Mon-current 25871407 40,523,718

l":":‘ﬂl.'?'-i-ﬁ #5682, 156
Movements of computer software is shown below
2021 2020
Balance at beginning of year Flo01.368 B3.A410,040
Additions 205,610 46,200
Amortization (Mote [E) (1,095,365) i1.854.872)
Balance at end of vear PL001.613 Bl a0, 368

. Leases

The Bank has several leases covering the office space of its branches. Terms of the lease agreements
range from three to 15 years under renewable options, and include escalation rates ranging from 5%
o 10%. With the exception of shon-lerm leases and leases of low-value underlying assets, cach lease
is reflected as a right-of-use asset under Bank Premises, Fumitures, Fixtures and Equipment

{sce Mote 1) and a lease liability under Other Liabilities (sec Note 16) in the statements of financial
pl'.ll‘iill-IJI'I. The Bank recognized Righi-of-use agsel with average remuming term of five vears as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020,

In 2021 ond 2020, expenses related 1o lease arrangements recognized in the profit or loss follows:

Becember 31, December 31,

2021 2020

Depreciztion expense (Note 11) F5.494 347 B5 377 570
Interest expense 1. 306451 1,121,551
Rent expense = shorl ternm lenses (Mote 18) 256377 1,595,784
8,957,175 B, 204 WS




aet out below are the carrying amounts of right of use assets and lease liability as of December 31,
2021 and 2020 and the related movemenis during the period:

As at January 1, 20
Additions
Depreciation
Payments

Accretion of interest

Raphit-of-ume nssets
P24.976_ 848
3,695,996

{5,608, 904

Loy liakilitges

24 505 266
31,645,994

[5.963,143)

1,120,551
L1

As at December 31, 2000
Additions

Diepreciation

Payments

ACcrehon 1] inferesi

23,063,850
6,397, 101
(5,494,347

23.749.670
6,397,101
(5.447.213)
|, 306,451

As atl December 11, 2021

P23 G,

P26,006, 600

The maturity analysis of lepse lisbility as at December, 2021 and 2020 are as follows;
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The Bank has elected not to recognize a lease linhility for shor-lerm lesses or for lenses of bow value
assets, Payments made under such leases are expensed on a straight-line basis,

. Deposit Linbilities

The breakdown of deposit liabilities per classification lollows;

2021 220
Demand EE_ 4dTI008 F13, 144 kK3
Savings 2 I8 160.5TT 2200 622 505
Time 543,440,465 526,300,317

 BLTTI074,140  B2,741,067,799

Deposit hiabilities are in the form of savings ond tme deposits with annueal interest rates ranging from
U.15% 1o 7.0% both os of December 31, 2021 and 2020, Demand deposits, on the other hand, do not
bear interest. In 2021 and 2020, interest expense incurred on savings deposits amounted to

P34 million, and #5.9 million, respectively, while interest expensc incumad on time deposits
amounied o 6.1 millien, and B8.1 mallion, respectively. These are presented as Interest Expense on
Depesit Liabilities in the stiatements of income.  Interest payablbe as of December 31, 2021 and 2020
amounted to B4 million and P78 million, respectively, and are presented as pant of Accrued interest
payable under Cther Liabilities account in the statements of financial position (see Mote 16).

AR T e
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Under existing BSP regulations, deposit liabilities are subject to regular and liquidity reserve of 4%
for demand, savings and time deposit . On April &, 2012, the BSP issued an amendment to the
exizting provisions as 1o the eligibility of cash and deposit accoums with BSP as forms of reserve
requirements. As indicated in the amendment, cash and other cash ibems are no longer considered as

eligible reserves. The Bank is in compliance with these BSP regulations as of the end of each

reposing period (sce Mote 7)),

The maturity profile of deposit liabilities is shown below,

2021 200
Within one vear P TE6,927.394 B2 TR0, 184 803
Beyvoend one vear ba bess than five vears 200,146,746 40, 582,996
P2ITTON, 040 B T41,067,799
Ii. Oher Liahilities
Thiz account consists of!
2021 2020
Lease liability (Mote 14) P26,k 009 23,749 670
Agoount payable 17,997,057 [ 8,844,736
Accreed cxpenscs 15,531,196 15,585,252
Accrucd inmterest pavable (Mote 15) 6,396,691 7,758,393
Adlvances from Cuslooamers S.0a0, 703 5722973
Ciross reccipts tax payable 4,307,246 4,143,544
Duse to Treasurer of the Philippines 231582 1662271
Dividends payable (Mote 17) 1.952 454 B17,7596
Withholding taxes payable 1,481,471 1,511,778
Income tax payable 1,195,016 10,248,564
Ratirement benefit obligation (Mobe 19) - 21417272
Oihers 131468 12,787
BE2,277 818 B117. 495,004
Others include fringe benefit taxes and provision for loan commitments (see Note 4).
Breakdown of other linhilities as o liquidity is shown below,
2021 2020
Current PS5 625109 B39 571 .46]
Maon-current 26,651 406 57923575
BE22ITT.SIS BI1T 495 036

AU T e
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17, Equity

Capiral Managesmentt Offeciives, Policies and Provedures

The Bank's policy 1s to maintain a strong capital base to maintain investor, creditor and marke
confidence and to sustain future development of the business, The impact of the level of capital on
sharcholder's retumn is regularly accounted for and the Bank recognizes the need to maintain a
alance between the higher retwrms that might be possible with greater gearing. and the advamages
and security afforded through a sound capital position.

Regwlatory Capital
The Bank's lead regulator, BSP, sets and monitors capital requirements of the Bank.

Ini imiplementing current capital requirements, BSP requires the Bank to maintzin a prescribed ratio of
10%% of qualifying regulatory capital 1o total nisk-weighted assets including market risk and
operational risk.

Under the relevant BSP regulations, the regulatory capital is analyzed into two tiers which are Tier |
Capital ples Tier 2 Capital less allowable dedwctions from the total of Tier | and Tier 2 capital,

The Bank's regulatory capital position as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 i3 presented as follows:

2021 2020

Tier | Capitanl P48H. 312,317 BA9R. 65T 171

Tier 2 Capital 0, 298,003 33,702,473

Tital n:-Eulaluw HualifriﬂE capital B494,610,320 B532 359 644
Risk Weighted Assets

Credit Risk Weighted Assets Bl 42 110,005 B M GT77023

DOperational Risk Weighted Asseis 614,922,842 589,272 337
Total ﬁxh-u'uighlnd aEEels Fl._ﬁ.ﬁ-‘.tﬂ]!,ﬂﬂ B2 449, 949 360
2021 200
Capital adequacy ratios ([CAR)
Total regulatory capital expressed as
percentnge of todal risk-weighted nssets 19.34% 21.71%%
Total Tier 1 expressed as percentage of total
risk-weighted assels 19, 10%% 20.4%

The above CARS as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are based on audited balances and are not the
same with the CARs as reported to the BSP, As of December 31, 2021 and 20240, the Bank’s capital
adequacy ratios (CAR) are higher than the BSP minimum requirement of 10%

Capital Alfocation

The allocation of capital between specific operations and activities i, 10 a large extent driven by
optimization of the return achieved on the capital allocated, The amount of capital allocated to each
operation or activity is based primarily upon the regulatory capital, buf in some cases the regulatory
requirements do not reflect fully the varyimg degrees of nsk associated with differemt activities, In
such cases, the capital requirements may be flexead o reflect differing risk profiles subject fo the
averall level uf{:u‘piml Lo Support & Fl:l.rtiq.:l.ﬂil:r |;_|-|'u.":|'i'|'li|.1|‘| o ;ll'.‘[i'.'i1_'r. The froceEs of allocation of
capital to specific operations and activities is undertaken independently of those responsible for the
operation, and is subject to review by the Bank's ROC.
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Although maximization of the retum on risk-adjusied capital is the principal basis used in
determining how capiial 15 allocated within the Bank to particular operations or activities, It i1s not the
sale basis used for decision making. Account profitsbility is also taken, and symergies with other
opcrations and activities, the availability of managemant and other resources, and the fit of the
activity with the Bank’s longer term strategic objectives. The Bank's policies m respect of capatal
management and aliocation wre reviewed regularly by the BOHD,

Minimurm Capital Requirerment

Under existing BSP regulations, the determination of the Bank's complisnce with regulatory
requirements and ratios is based on the amount of the Bank’s “unimpaired capital” (regular net worth)
reported (o the BSP, determined on the basis of regulatory accounting policies, which differ from
PFRS in some aspects (maimly m the recogmtion of deferved tax assets). The Bank i compliant with
RA00.0 million minkmum capital requirement of BSP for thrift banks as of December 31, 2021 and
2020,

Cerpaiter] Stoack
The authorized capital steck of the Bank is B1LO billion divided inte 10,000,008 shares both with a par
vitlue of PIOOD per share

Asg of December 31, 2021 and 2020, todal shares issued and outstanding are 3,677,392, As al the
same dates, the Bank has 1536 and 163 stockholders, reapectively, owning 100 or mone shares each of
the Bank's capital stock.

Surpins Free

On April 22, 2021, the BOD approved the #1735 million cash dividend. The cash dividends shll
outstanding, which amounted to 2.0 M and P08 million s of December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively, is presented as Dividends payable under Other Liabilities account in the statements off
financial position (e Note 16

aprpilus Reserve

Pursuant to the requirements of the BSP under Circular Mo, 1011 (se¢ Mode 2}, the Bank shall
recognize generil loan loss provisions equivalent 1o one percent of all outstanding loans as of the end
of the reporting period, excepl For accounts considered as credit risk-free under the existing BSP
regulations. In cases when the computed allowance for ECL on those exposures is less than the
required one percent general loan kess provision, the deficiency is recognized through appropnation
from the Bank's available Surplus. Such appropriation is considered as Tier 2 capatal subject to the
limit provided under the CAR fumework. The accumubated amoum of appropristion 1o surplus
reserves for general lean loss portfiolio as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted to

BI7.17 and PI4.3 million, respectively

A
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L&, Other Operating Income and Expenses
Chher Cpergting Tncome - et
This account consisls of
2021 2020
Fees and commissions BI17. 100367 #15053, 2%
{rain on sale of non-financial assets
(Mate |1 and 1.2) 10217451 358461941
Foreign curmency exchange gains (loss) - met LART (3.043)
Miscellaneous I TRT.EHD a4 35T &3

PY1.117.885 P55 260831

Miscellaneous imcome includes incidental charges from swio boans, prepayment penalty on loans and
other income reccived

Chther Cperaring Expenses
This account cons sz of

2021 2020
Compensation expense [(Mote 19) PI42,742,202 PI36377,693
Taxes andd hesnses I:r'-i1:|li.: 12 TR A9 019 2% 112,995
Depreciation and amoriization (Motes 11, 12 and 13) 21,781,202 22975532
[nsurnmce 11008246 1175464
RL‘¢I.II'i['r|.'., clerical and |'IH;'HHI..'IL.\I_.'_-\,'I:I:I| 10,700,493 1. 174,873
Postage, telephone, cobles and telegams 440 [ o 1M 4,326,095
Power, light and water 4,054 860 3,431,837
Stationery and supplics 1.705.247 JOTE,055
Management and other professional {ees 445,102 2AMGH 303
Repairs and mainfesance 2421376 1575347
Fees and comnmisswons 246765355 201, T
Litigation (Mote 12) 2407137 1,712,495
Travelling 1,959 9412 | 6054849
Fentals (Mote 14) L15637T 1.395, 784
Fuel and lubriconis 75,785 e, 549
Advertising and publicity L4 00D 07311
Others (Notes L and 19) 10,500,311 13811 BG6H

P247.938.006 R244, 164,268

Chhers include expenses related to information technology, training, notarial and meals,
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19. Employes Benelis

Campenzation Expemrse
Details of this account are presented below (see Note 18)

2021 200
ahort-lerm employes benefits (Mote 21} P132,994,667 Bl 20288056
Post-emplovment defined benelit 0 747,515 TR (3T

Fl142,742.202 B136,377.693

Pevsf-smplovment .I'.k:..'l'.qu'r.n' Hemefit Plan
foa) Charageterisios -I.l.||-|'ll.|l." Dafiared .H'wh;’.l'.in' Plevit

The Bank maintains a funded, tax-qualified, noncontribory post-employment benefit plan that is
being ndninistered by trustee banks that are legally separated from the Bank. The post-
emplovment plan covers all regular full-time employvess,

The normal retirement age is 6. Nommal retirement benefil i an amount squivalent 16 150% of
the final monthly covered compensation for every year of credited service,

i Explevradion of Amonnts Presmted in the Flrancial Salenrents
Actuarial valuations are made annually to update the retirement benefit costs ond the amount of
contributions. All amounts presented below are based on the actuarial valuation reporis obiained

from o :in|:||:|'||,.1|-:|.r:|:|l aciuary as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,

The amownt of retirement benefit obligation recognized as part of Ciher Liabilities account in the
statements of Mnancial position are determined as follows (sec Mote 16):

201 2020
Present valoe of the obligation PI00,225297 RrI101 313,122
Fair value of plan assets (101,373,829 {73.895,850)
Adjustment for assel ceiling test 56,045 >
Retirement obligation/{assel) (P1,092, 487} P27.417.272

The movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation recognized in the financial
staterments are as follows:

2021 2020
Balance pi beginning of year Bl1OL,3013,122 B4, 14 3151
Current service cost 9,747,535 089637
Interest expense 3,930,949 3,968 8635
Remeasurements of actuanal losses (gains)
anising Mok
Changes in financial assumptions (15,51.3,486) | 5489122
Changes in demographic assumptions 1,189,309 1,220,245
Experience adjustments 1,143,216 523,193
Benefits paid (2,585,15K) [1,162.935)
Balance al end of period/vear RI00,225.297 PIOES15,122
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The movements in the fair value of plan assets are presented below,

2021 2020
Balance ot beginning of year F73,895,850 BT, 545, BEE
Interest income 3,345 Uk 3,233 "Mz
Gain (loss) on plan pssets (excluding amounis
e luded 1nonet mtenest) {TO2.H33) (2358810
Benefits paid (2.5R535H) (1,162,935)
Actual contnbutions 27417272 26,338,505
Balance at end of vear P101,373,829 PT3,895, 850

The composition of the fair value of plan assets at the end of the reporting period by category and
risk characteristics is shown below.

2021 2020

Cash and cash equivalents B, 237 PI123,749
Deb instruments - Corporate bonds 18,567,145 46,647 393

Dett instruments - Other bonds 17,324,747

Investment i Unil Investosent Trust Fund {(JTTF) 54,366, 7H4 25 R 366

Accrued intercst receivable g A5] 227,630

Otthers (markel rakns/losses, ee.) KR, 1K2 183,720

101,486 486 73,930,858
Accountabilitics (112.657) 35,008

P1O1, 373820 B3, E05 13

The fair values of the debt securities are determined based on quoted market prices in active
markets (classified as Level | of the fair value hierarchy). The Bank’s investments in UITF i3
classified under Level 2.

Plan assets do not comprise any of the Bank’s own financial instruments or any of i1s assets
oecupied andor used in s operabions,

The components of amounts recognized in profit or loss and in ether comprehensive income in
respect of the defined benefit post-employment plan are as follows

2021 2020

Reported in profit or loss:
Currenl servicg cosl P9, 747,515 RFT089.637
mel interest expense (income) SRLO51 T35.063
10,329 586 BT.825 300

LU
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2021 2020
Reported in other comprehensive income:
Actuarial losses (gains) arisimg from changes in:
Financiol assumplions (F15.513.480) P13.489,122
Changes in demographic assumplions 1,15%,309 1,220,245
Experience adjustments 2,143,226 2Y195
Retum on plon gssets (excloding amounts
included in net intenesd expense) TOZHID 2358, 50
Effects of asset ceiling 56,045 =

(P11,422,073) BI9.591,971

Current service cost and net interest expense (income), including the net interest expense on asset
ceiling, are presented a3 part of Compensation expensc and Others, respectively, under Oither
Openting Expenses and Interest Income - Others, respectively, in the statements of income (see
Maote 18],

Amoamms recognized in other comprehensive income were included within item that will not be
reclmsified subsequently to profit or loss,

In determining the amounts of the defined benefit post-ecmployment obligation, the folleowing
significant actuarial assumplions were used;

2021 2020
Discount rates 5.03% 3.88%
Expected rate of salary increases 6.00%% LR L]

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are hased on published s1atistics and maortality
tables. The average remaining working lives of an individual retiring a1 the age of 60 is 26 years
for both males and females. These assumptions were developed by management with the
pssistance of an independent actuary

Discount factors are determined close to the end of cach reporting period by reference to the
interest rates of a zero coupon government bond with terms 1o maturity approximating the lerms
of the post-employment obligation. Other assumptions arc basced on cumment actuarial benchmarks
and management’s historical expenicnce

Rivky Associared with the Retiremens Plan

The plan exposes the Bank (o actuarial risks such as invesiment nisk, interest rate nsk. longes ity
risk and salary nisk.

il Tarvessimrennd erited fierereny Bivks

The present value of the defined benefit obligntion is calculated using a discount rate
determined by reference 10 market vields of government bonds. Generally, a deerease in the
interest rate of a reference government bond will increase the plan obligation. However, this
will be partially offset by on increase in the return on the plan’s invesoments in debi securities
and if the return on plan asset falls below this rate, it will create o deficit in the plan,
Currently, the plan asseis is concentrated on mvestment in debl securities, investments in
mattaal fund and UITF. Duee o the long-term anfure of the plan obligation, a kvel of




. 50.

continuing debt, mutual fund and UITF investments is an approprizie element of the Bank's
long-term strotegy to manage the plon efficiently,

(i) Longevity and Safaey Rizks
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated by reference 1o the best
estimate of the mortality of the plan participants both during and afier their employment,
and to their funure salrics, Conseguently, increases in the life expectancy and salary of
the plan participants wall result in an increase in the plan ohligation.

fall hher Deforaation

The information on the sensitivity analysis for certain significant sctuarial sssumplions, the

Bank's asset-liability matching strategy, and the timing and uncertainty of future cagh Nows

rebated to the retiremsent plan are described below,

fi} Sevitivity Avalvsis
The following table summarizes the effects of changes in the significant actuarial

assumptions used in the determination of the defined benefit obligation as of December 31,
2021 and December 31, 2020:

Impact on Post-cmpdoyment Beneli UH:EEIM

Change in |ereass in Dhecresse in
A saumpn .".m'l.muli.-:!n Assumpbion
December
Dizesust rale & 100 bpa /= 100 bps [FIL, 1250400 P10, 1 %0684
Salary rate # 100 bips | - 1Dy 11,893,950 (10,192, 30°7)
Drecenvber M2
[hscoun Fale 14} bps | = 1{HIhp= (P13 142471 POS6H2 T80
Salary mle = {H) bps - UK 12, TX 57T IO ES5 Sl

The sensitivity analysis presented above is hased on a change in an assumpdion while holding
all other assumplions constant. This analysis may nol be representative of the actual change
in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur
in salatson of one another a2 some of the ;l:q.mlljlplil.lﬂri iy be comrelated. Furhermore, in
presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation
has been calculated using the projected unit credit methad at te end of the reporting pericd,
which 15 the same as that applied in caleulating the defined benefit obligation recognized in
the statements of financinl position.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not
change compared (o the previous vears,

fif) Asser-liability Marching Strategies

To cificiently mannge the retirement plan, the Bank ensures thi the investment positions are
managed in accordance with its asset-lmbility matching sirategy to achicve that long-term
investments are i line with the obliganons wnder the retirement scheme. This sirategy aims
1o match the plan assets to the retirement obligations by investing in long-term fixed interest
securities (i.e.. government bonds) with maturities that match the benefit payments as they
Fall dhee and in the appropriste currency. The Bank actively monitors bow ihe duration and
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the expected vield of the investments are matching the expected cash outflows arising from
the retirement obligations.

A larpe portion of the plan assets as of Decemnber 31, 2021 ond 2020 consists of debt
securities and mvestments im mutual fund and UITF. The Bank believes that debt securitics
and investments 10 sl fund and UITFE offer the best retums over the Fong tenm with an
acceptable level of nsk.

There has been no change in the Bank™s strategics (0 manage its nisks from previous perros.

fiii) Farndling Arvangements and Expected Contrilintions

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the plan overfunded (underfunded) by B1.1 million and
{p27.4 |1pi||||,1|'|] based on the actearizl valuation Fipart,

The maturity profile of undiscounted expected benefit payments from the plan for the next
ten years follows:

2021 2020
Within one year FE 02347 P4 852 657
Mare than one year to five years 2B 366,237 28,864,058
Mare than five years to ten years 47.526,251 30,538 678

PEIEN B30 B73.255,393

The weighted average duraiion of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
periods is 11,1 vears.

20, Income Taxes
Chirrent and Dfereed Toaves

The components of tax expense {income) reporied in the statcments of income and statements of
comprehensive income follow:

2021 20200
Reported in statemenis of meome
Current (ax cxpense:
Fegular comporate meome tax (RCTT) B9850, 150 B24. 115,345
Final 1ax at 2% 5,056,802 6645655
9,936,952 30,759 000
Provision for {benefit from ) defemed 1ax Do 0 0G0 2% {10,299, 023)

P20.053,081 20459977

Reporied in statements of comprehensive incoms
Income tax effect on other comprehensive
income llems (FL645553) Fih042 312
- —— —
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A reconciliation of tax on pretax profit compuled at the applicable statulory mies (o tax expense
reported in the statements of income is presented below,

2021 2020

Statutory income ax®* RFI8. 758 488 20,497 218
Adjustiment on tax expense due to change

in enacied rafes 1,296,506
Income subjected to final tax (1 ARDITL) (3,377,188}
Tax eflects of:

Mon-deductible expenses 1,487,898 3,339.947
Tax expense E20,053.081 B 459977
il evnciod raves off 29% onel 1079 e Deormier 01, M0T ol Deormlser 3, DM Reeper ity

The net deferred tax assets rebate to the following as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 (see Note 13):

- 2021 2020
Deferred ray asset
Allewance for impairment losses PE961,759 FIE 113,214
Retirement benelit obligation 7552343 13422376
Lease liability 6,500,502 T, 124 902
Accumulated depreciation on investmend propertics 1,573,768 1208, 100
Acerued vacation leaves 1,279, TRD . 223448
Allowance for losses - other resources 535,500
Unrealized Fair market value losses on financial
asgels at FVOLC] - net 13754
Foreign exchange losses - 913
20,418,410 41, T92 055
Deforred far Habilities
Righ=of-use assel £.5991.651 6,919,156
Ciain on BOPA foreclosure I88.T20
Unrealized foir market value gains on financial
pssetsal FWOICT - net - 235448
Foreign cxchange gains 622
ﬁ.,_]i{l'ﬂqa 7154604

P20.037,417 P14.633,351

Provision for (benefits from) deferred tax recognized in other comprehensive income for the years
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted to P4.3 million and P5.6 million, respectively. This
inchudes impact of change in tax rate 05 a result of enaciment of Corporate Recovery and Tax
Incentive for Entemprises Bill (see below),

Prior ig enactment of CREATE Act {sce below), the minimuom corporaie ingome fax (MCIT} is
compuied ai 2% of gross income s defined under the tax regulations or 1w RCIT, whichever is
higth_ Mo MCOCIT omas TI,EFH.,I:I'HJI.‘I far the YOS eided December 31, 2021 and 200200 o= the BT was
higher than MCIT during the peried.

In 2021 and 2020, the Bank opted 1o claim itemized deductions for the computation of its income tax
due.
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Covporale Recovery and Tax fncenlives for Enterprizes (CREATE) Bill

President Rodrigo Duterte signed into law on March 28, 2021 the CREATE Act to attract more
investments and maintain fiscal prudence and stability in the Philippines, Republic Act (RA) 11534 or
the CREATE Act introduces reforms to the corporate income tax and incentives systems. [t takes effect
|5 days after its complete publication in the Official Gazette of in & newspaper of general circulation
ar April 11, 2021,

The following are the key changes to the Philippine tx law pursuant to the CREATE Act which have
an impact on the Bank:

= Effective July |, 2020, regular corporate income tax {RCIT) mte is reduced from 30% to 25% for
domestic and resident foreign corporations. For domestic corporations with net taxable income
not exceeding B million and with total assets nol exceeding PLO0 million (excluding land on

which the business entity®s office, plant and equipment are situated) during the taxable year, the
RCIT rate is reduwced to 2004,

*  Minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) rate reduced from 2% 1o 1% of gross income effective
July 1, 2020 to December 31, 2023,

As g resull of the changes, the current fax due for 2020 was reduced by B2.64 million, resulting in
reduction in current tax linbility and current fax expense, which is recognized in the 2021 statement of
income, Furthermore, applicable tax rates for future taxable and deducuble amounts, for purposes of
deferred tax measurement, were reduced from 30%% 1o 25%, and accordingly reduced deferred tax
aszel by PA.TT million, P3.93 million of which was charged m profit or loss in 2021, while

B1.84 million was charged in ofher comprehensive income,

. Related Party Transactions

Thiz Bank's related parties include itz stockholders and the Bank s key managemeni personnel,
Kev Managemen Compensalion

Shor-tenm benefits paid to key management emplovees amounted to B21.1 million and P22.9 million
for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, which are presented as part of
Compensation expense under Other Operating Expenses scoount in the stntements of income {sce
Wotes 18 and 19),

Directors, Officers, Stockholders and Relared Interesis

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank has loan and deposit transactions with certain DOSEL
Uinder existing policies of the Bank, DOSEI loans are made on substantially the same terms s boans
pranted to other individwals and businesses of comparable risks.

The General Banking Act and BSP regulations limit the amount of the loons granted by the Bank to a
single borrower 1o 25% ol equity. The amount of individual loans to DOSRI, of which 7086 must be
secured, should not exceed the amount of the deposit and book value of their invesmient in the Bank.
In the aggregate, loans 1o DOSKI generlly should wot exceed the total equity or 15% of the total loan
portfolio of the Bank, whichever is lower, As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, DOSREI relates to
microfinance loans that are secured with hold-out savings and back to back loans with outstanding
balance amounting 1o P03 million and P03 million, respectively,
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[n 2020, the Bank transferred the conduit bank to UnionBank which includes clearing and cash
management, Deposit 1o UnionBank used as working fund is considered DOSRD and it was secured
by UnionBank with government securities. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Bank has
oulstanding deposit with UnionBank related o this arrangement amounting to BI0L.T million and
PE6.1 million, respectively, which is presented under *Due from other banks” in the statement of
fmancial positsan,

Also, as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, certain related parties have deposits with the Bank. Total
amount of deposits received from the related parties with outstanding loan balance above, subject o
hild-out, amounted (o PO million and P05 million ax of December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. Interest expense recognized from these deposits amounted 1o P37 thousands and
B1.0 ihousands for ihe years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

22

Commitments and Contlngenches

The Bank is o defendant in varous cases pending in ¢ounts for alleged claims against the Bank, the
oulgome of which are nof fully determinable ot present, Also, the Bank has unutilized credit lines
from warious local banks,

."';ddi[ii_:-u.nll:r'. the Bank has extended eredu lines 1o brrowers, Unutilized credit line availlments of
the borrowers to the Bank as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted 1o FHLd million and

F29.5 million, respectively. Contingent liabilities arising from these ransactions are not reflected in
the financial statemenis. The Bank recognizes in its books any losses and habilities mourred m the
course of its operations &% soon a8 these become determinable and quantifiable,

Undrawn loan commitments do not require provision for credit losses, as these are irmevocable
COMMLMments,

Supplementary Information Reguired Under BSP Circular 1074
Presented below is the supplementary information reguired by the BSP under BSP Circular 10704,

Basic guantitative indicaiors of finangial periormancs
The following are some measeres of the Bank's linancial performance:

2021 2020
Eetum on AVETRRE Squily;
et prroit 9.6% T9%
Average weal equity®
Hetiom on averRine resances:
Met profit L6% 1. 4%
Averape ioial resources®
Met interest maggin
Met inlenest income 9.3% o.8%

Averape interest-caming resounoes®

gy dmn i b Ry il B i g vt sl freiaea ieoresel ke

LRI



Capital instrurmsents issued

The capital instrument issued by the Bank comprise only of common share (CET 1)L Moreover, the
Bank has 3,677,392 common shares, which are issued and outstanding as at December 31, 2021 and

2020 [see Mate 1T7)
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Credit security and status of recgivables from customers

The breakdown of the receivables from customers” portfiolio (before allowance for credit losses) as o
secured and unsecured Mollows:

2021 H020

Secuned:
Feal estale morigage Pi 324,233,032  PL 164,648,048
Chattel morigage 51,161,131 9,062,303
Deposit hold-ou 35364992 26,509,349
Agricubural guarmntes fund peol 25.506,197 20,204,505
I 46,265,242 1,300,425 405
Linsecured ST5.638,287 446,455,353

BI021,903,519

B1. 746,880,758

The breakdown of the receivables from customers” portfolio as 1o stams follows:

o ; & 'E]
rnﬁ.m.ina Nom-perfarming  Total bean portfalio
Cipnss SRNTYAE Ao
Sniall and mediam erlcimpise loans PR 04,9590 Pl 2440810 FHEI B 0E]
Agpra il ofher agr ¢redn b, 1 00,700 B 256,981 AT ETRRET
Micromicrprise loss 111080208 21,707,754 241796962
Lipases 1o prinvate oorpormtions F16.24 1,976 Z1624H1.976
L o mreli ved ual T
hidsiing pirpioses LY 119.971 6517918 AT E00
Loars 1o individual For
CONSET PN e T80 04 5A4T0ATA TR TILSLD
Loasts (o mdivilual G
other pemases 4517469 = 4557 Ak
Toin| gross cnmying amoud 1967 506,072 S5 T15T7 A0 M5
Allovwance for ECL (1, 42556TT) (25654 944) (37080 62 1)
Mt carrvang anmsurn BB G5 050,695 HIEMI213 P19 RE2 00K
ﬂ' W uE -r 1 3 '\ﬂl
Performing Non-performing  Tolal loan panfalio
Lo carmying amount
Small and medium enfempeise hnan P71224] 244 BT, 119407 FTS%. 371361
Agra and other agn credi 201 421326 1 ASTIRS Y BIET
Microenierprise loans 184 424,758 15 BioTar F20,23546%
Loans bo privale comoratiinm I H3E.TAT Z2LBIETGT
Lioans o imdividual for
hoising pefpsds JA3 XR0908 2449411 155,830,319
Licans to imadividual lor
ACCNSUTIEN rrposes B3, TR 10k, 358 T 73,693 050
Loans so Edividus] for
olbsir purposes TRILIES _ '.' ':-"] "-.I.IFS :
Total gross camying asmount |.6I4457,572 1122251486 1,746,850, 758
Albpwaesge for ECL { 0K, | 30} (25,765 061 ) {3 6,473,192)
Ml carryieg smounl Pl 513 940 442 BThEE 123 1710407 566




Significant credit exposures

The Bank's concentration of credit as to industry for its receivable for customers” portfiolio follows:

N 2021 2020
Rewil rade P422.987.517 P3R5.515.732
Focal estale activities J81.TH02TR 335,026,515
Agriculiure, forestry and fishing JRI 088111 305,126,286
Wholesale trade 166,523,252 161,100,576
Accommaodation ond food service activities 121,510,250 28,140,540
Manubacturing 114,330,839 112,545,500
Conswmpticn loans T0.722 519 73,693,050
Construction Tie 550, 100 GE. 341453
Transportation and siorage 84,084,208 62,768,169
Education 4,959,956 20,903,559
|"i|1iu'.||.:|;.'|| aind insuranee activilics ﬁ-.S].],EEIZ ';'.UEE.:"-'lﬁ
Water supply, sewemge, waste manogement and
remedintion activities 1952.589 1.966,350
[nformation and commumication 2,703,606 2,365,091
Human health and social work sctivities I612,003 3000,454
Adiminisiralive suppon services 1,726,370 3.201,209
Aurts, entertpinment and recreation 1,132,149 1044, 245
Professional, screntific amd 1echnical services AR, 569 1.321.474
Mining and quarrving 36212 898 4 569
Other service activities 64,071302 6,350,220

PEOX1.003,529 P1,746,880,758

The BSP considers that loan conceniration exsis when the total loan exposure to a particular industry
exceeds 30% of the toal loan portfolio. The Bank is in complionce with this loan concentration limit
of the BSP as of the end of each reporting period.

Information on Bela iy Lopns
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Bank is in compliance with the existing BSP regulations on
DOSHEL The following information relates to DNOSRI loans of the Bank:

2021 e
Todal DOSEI loans PI6H.5TH PETLTI
Unszeured DOSRI Loans - o
Interest income on DOSKEI loans 39,243 123,850
Taotal DOSE] deposits 137 481,005 Q1388475
%5 of total DOSEI loans 1o total loan portfolio 0% 0.0%
% of unsecured DOSEI loans 1o total DOSEI loans 0.0%a 0.0%
%a of past=due DOSRI loans to total DOSRI loans 0% 0.0%
%a of non-performing DOSRI keans 1o total OSE]
loans (0.1 0.0%

Secured Liabilities and Assets Pledeed as Se¢unly
In 2021 and 2020, there were no assets pledged by the Bank as security for liabilities.
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Contingencies and Commitments Ariging from Off-balance Sheet ltems

The summary of the Bank's commitments and contingent sccounts i shown below,

2021 2020
Comminted credin lines P94 20,030 F29.52 1,000
Guaraniec issued 52 (ke
Items held for safekeeping 3385 3,534
Iiems held for collateral i1.348 1,385

P90,256,733 F20,525.919

24,

Supplementary Information Regquired Under Revenue Regulations 15-2010

Presented below is the supplementary information required by the Burcau of Imemal Revenue (BIR)
under RE 15-2010 to be disclosed as part of the notes to financal ststements, This supplementary
information is not a required disclosure under FFRS,

Ciross Receipls Tax
In lieu of the value-added tax (VAT), the Parent Bank is subject to the GRT imposed on all banks and
pon-bank financial intermediarics pursuant to Section 121 of the Tax Code.

The Bank reported total GRT amounting to B15,486,670 in 2021 as shown under Taxes and Licenses
under other operating expenses. Total GET payable as of December 31, 2021 amounded 1o

4.3 million and is included under Other liabilitics account in the 2021 statement of financial
position.

Documentary Stamp Tax
In general, the Bank's documentary stamp tax (DST) wransactions anise from the execution of debi
mstruments, securilty documents, certificwes of deposits and bills of exchange.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, DST affixed amounted to P14,063,504 representing
documentary stamps imposed mainly on delt instruments documents issued during the year, of which
P10.191,968 were charged to the Bank's clients; hence, not reported as part of Taxes and licenses,

Dietails of axes and licenses presented under Other Operting Expenses account in the 2021
statement of mcome follow (see Mote 18):

GRT P15.486,670
DST 3871538
Business permils ond other licenses 2 35R.265
Fringe benefils tox 140,772
Real property tax 337,517
Vehicle Registration 214254

B2 409,018
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Withhobdime Taxes
Detmils of total withholding taxes for the yvear ended December 31, 2020 are shown below,

Compensation and employee benefits PO ART, 030
Fimal 1,931,643
Expanded [ 655 546

P1O015,509

Deficiency Tax Assessments and Tax Cases

Az of Decembser 21, 2021, the Bank has no other finel deficiency tax assessment from BIR nor does it
have tax cases outstanding or pending in couns or bodies outside of the BIR in any of the open
taxable vears.



